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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

Results

2019
—E-NE
HK$’000
BT
Revenue g 31,023
Loss for the year FEERE (21,780)

Assets and Liabilities
2019
—Z-NE
HK$’000
BT
Total assets BEE 572,675
Total liabilities BEE (223,305)
Shareholders’ funds REE & 349,370
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+-ALEE
2020 2021 2022
“EB-FF T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A% Tr  A%TR

35,348 36,492 36,381

(25,738) (14,312) (27,333)
EERAE
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+-H
2020 2021 2022

—E-FFE —E--F —T--
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT

572,298 547,198 530,725
(250,286)  (238,918)  (249,797)

322,012 308,280 280,928
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General Performance

During the year under review, the Group’s net loss increased by 6% to
approximately HK$28,900,000 after netting the effects for (i) increase
in gross profit of approximately HK$4,250,000 compared to 2022;
(i) gain on disposal of property of HK$7,462,000 in 2022 against a
HK$900,000 loss on property disposal through disposing a subsidiary
in 2023; (iii) government subsidies of HK$2,266,000 were received
in 2022 but not in 2023; (iv) increase in fair value loss on investment
properties of HK$1,900,000 compared to the previous year; (V)
exchange gain of HK$992,000 in the year instead of unrealized RMB
exchange loss of HK$7,735,000 the year before; (vi) income tax credit
of HK$4,229,000 in the year under review versus income tax expense
of HK$90,000 the year before; and (vii) increase in finance costs of
HK$5,244,000 relative to the year before.

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 46% to
HK$53,037,000 in 2023 while gross profit increased by approximately
24% to HK$21,711,000. Both the increases were mainly attributed to
the hospitality business segment.

Other income decreased by 67% to HK$4,491,000. It was mainly due
to the absence this year of gain on disposal of warehouse property of
HK$7,462,000 and government subsidies of HK$2,266,000 including
the employment support scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund
launched by the HKSAR government supporting the payroll of the
Group’s employees in the year before. The reduction in aggregate
was partially offset by the exchange gain of HK$992,000 for the year
under review.

Finance costs increased by HK$5,244,000 was due to the
progressively higher and higher HIBOR interest rate since July
2022. The administrative expenses decreased by HK$6,520,000
to HK$29,849,000 mainly attributed to the absence of unrealized
exchange loss on RMB deposits of HK$7,735,000 in 2023
versus 2022. Taking out the unrealized RMB exchange loss, the
administrative expenses were increased approximately 4% year-on-
year mainly attributed to add on administrative expenses incurred by
the newly added hotel business in the year under review.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$252,474,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$0.77. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$417,747,000 and HK$165,273,000
respectively.
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In 1Q2023 with COVID-19 fading into the background, economic
activities started picking up. Driven largely by the recovery of inbound
tourism and the return of major conferences and events, GDP of Hong
Kong and Macau grew year-on-year by 3.2% and 80.5% respectively.
In the beginning of the year the Group added a new location in our
hospitality service portfolio to capitalize on the ripple effect from the
tourism recovery. As a result the Group’s revenue as well as gross
profit remarkably increased for the year. Nonetheless, the ongoing
headwinds from weak global demand and tightened monetary
conditions had limited the full rebound in tourism after the pandemic.

During the year economic recovery was stalling and consumer
confidence was severely affected with negative wealth effect from
the sluggish real estate market. Property prices, in particular, prices
in the residential secondary market have trended downwards in the
continued high interest environment with 11 US interest rate hikes
totalling 5.25 percentage points that spanned March 2022 to July
2023. As of year end, all our residential investment properties incurred
fair value loss for which geographically Macau accounted for about
43% of the total valuation loss. Real estate sectors call for the Macau
SAR government to remove the cooling measures entirely to salvage
the fragile real estate market.

In the past year inflationary pressure on operating expenses and
high interest rates negatively impacted our bottom line financial
performances. Finance cost had almost doubled during the year from
the high cost of capital even though part of our bank loan secured
on bank deposits was repaid upon maturity of the bank deposits as
interest expense incurred outweighed the interest income earned.

Overall this fiscal year has been full of challenges on the road to
recovery, amongst others, the weak Renminbi against HKD that is
pegged to the strong USD undermined the purchasing power of
the Mainland visitors being a major component of visitor arrivals in
Hong Kong. On the other hand, the spending leakage as a result of
northbound travel to the nearby Mainland cities also poses a threat to
the local retail industry and results in fallout in other sectors.

RZZEZ=FF—ZF  BEECOVID-19##
HK  EEEBARER - SERIRENR
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Property Investments Business

During the year under review, total rental income contributed
from Hong Kong and Macau investment properties amounted to
HK$2,796,000, decreased by approximately 27% compared to the
year before. This was mainly attributed to vacancies of a Macau
retail shop and one Taikoo Shing property since 2Q2023 after their
respective leases were early terminated or expired. Return from
leasing the investment properties was about 3% comparing the gross
rental income and original cost of investments. Valuation loss on the
investment properties of HK$4,700,000 increased the segment loss
to HK$10,539,000 for the year under review and total valuation of the
investment properties dropped to HK$114,300,000 as at the year end
2023.

In Hong Kong total rental income derived from the Group’s retail
shop in Sheung Wan and residential units in Taikoo Shing decreased
approximately 13% to HK$1,200,000 with investment yield being
approximately 5% when compared gross rental income to original
cost of investment. The decreased rental income was mainly due to
the loss of rental income from a Taikoo Shing investment property that
was disposed during the year.

Rental income from Macau properties decreased by approximately
35% to HK$1,596,000, it was mainly due to vacancy of a retail shop
after the lease was early terminated in February 2023 on request
by the tenant. There is one office unit which has been vacant for
about three years from the pandemic. An average yield of about 3%
comparing the gross rental income and original cost of investments on
Macau properties was recorded.

Both the Hong Kong and Macau real estate markets in which the
Group’s investment properties are located encountered numerous
headwinds in 2023 including weaker than anticipated recovery
in inbound tourism and high interest rates. These factors led to
significant exodus of investors from the market. Businesses were
pushed to prioritise cost savings instead of expansion while residential
demand had been dampened with increased borrowing costs. In
December, a 2 year lease was secured on the Macau retail shop at
rental only half of the pre-pandemic level after almost 10 months’
vacancy. Over in Hong Kong in 2H2023 the Group grappled with
a loss of HK$900,000 upon disposal of a Taikoo Shing investment
property via company transfer at the time when residential property
prices started to record a decline. There was no acquisition of
investment properties during the year under review.
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REBFE BERBRMEREDEZHSK
ANMBEE 578 152,796,0007T @ EAT—F LR
DH2T% - WIHEBHERNRBRFA—FHZEE
BN —TEALHYEA S _=FF_FE
REZEMHEOWRER XD BERKE
B AR ANBREERIEERAREITL
B RHEEEMENBREL A% - KREE
FE  KREVEGHEEIERBE4,700,000
TC Lo ERE R = B ¥ 10,539,0007T ¢
BR-ZE-=FRREWEZBHETKSE
75 1114,300,0007T °

REE  KEXEBUNR ERHN—EZEEE
FARMURAEHNEEEM 2B WAL
FER L #913% 2= #1,200,0007T » #H S Uk
ABEHRIGEN R ETER » HERGE
BHI5% c MBSWAR P TIEEHREFAL
EN—EAGHREME 2 HSWAEZKR
g(o

RERPIMENTHS U AR L H35%E B
1,506,0007C * FEHR —HMZEEEHNELY
A _=—F _AEBEFERREERILEH
AR o —ARATEMARBUAREE
AO=F - BEBFIYENB S RA BN
FIERAETHE - iRz FHRER
BHIB3% °

REEREYEFENE S RAPIE ED
BR-E-ZFEHEURSTHREE - 81F
ERRELNRBERERRAESE -
CREEHABREENTRABE - 02
WABEHERATMEEE  ABEEER
EEERA EATMERNE - R+ 7 - 3t
—EEEEAHEANRMTE ERETR
FHMAL B EBRBAIKTEY % -
RES  AEEN-_T-=FE-FEM@EE
S 2 (B 4 B 44 4719 R IR BS 5 B A 789 3
& — B A &1L 8 ) 285421915 % 900,0007T
MASHE - REEERE - SmBERANE -



AL (RE) ARAF - ZF - =FEH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS « % & &} & 2 7 #r

At the moment the high cost of capital, ongoing geopolitical tensions
and outbound consumer spending as Hong Kong and Macau
residents increasingly travel across the border for shopping or dining
for good value for money are expecting to hinder the economic
growth in the near term. However there is still hope for gradual
recovery in the property market. In the recent 2024-2025 Budget,
the HKSAR government removed all cooling measures for residential
properties and raised maximum loan to value ratio for property
mortgage loans with immediate effect. After the policy change, Hong
Kong’s new home sales surged 10 times in the first five days after
removal of the cooling measures compared with two months ago,
according to Midland Realty. In the second hand market, the city’s
10 biggest estates saw transactions jumped to the highest in more
than a year over the weekend. The Macau SAR government also
took similar initiatives earlier this year in an effort to spur the sluggish
property market. Looking ahead, the potential cuts in interest rate
and the demand stemmed from the various talent admission schemes
are good signs to the property market momentum and capital growth
in our investment properties will sustain. The timing and pace of the
property market recovery remains uncertain, meanwhile the Group
will focus on attracting and retaining high quality tenants and ensure a
consistent flow of rental income.

Hair Styling Business

Turnover of this segment increased by approximately 5% to
HK$15,832,000 when compared to 2022 of which turnover on service
income increased 6% and product sales decreased 14%. Segment
net loss was increased to HK$1,275,000 compared to net loss of
HK$295,000 for the year before. This was mainly due to net off of
(i) increase in revenue (i) impairment loss on right-of-use assets of
HK$1,339,000 (i) government subsidies of HK$377,000 received in
the year before but not in the year under review and (iv) increase in
depreciation on right-of-use assets and staff cost.

The increase in revenue was due to the relatively lower base in
2022 when the hair salon suspended business for about a month
to implement the government’s preventive anti-epidemic measures.
In fact revenue in the 2H2023 decreased as one of our senior hair
stylists contributing a substantial amount to our income base left
the Group. Product sales also recorded a declining trend as some
customers could have shifted to hair products of lower prices amidst
the slower than expected recovery of the economy. Alongside labour
shortages and rising labour cost, in particular juniors with a high
turnover rate, continued to impact our operations.
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Going forward, the Group will continue to keep up with the market
trend and explore new business opportunities and widen the Group’s
revenue stream from both existing and potential customers. Our
customer base consists of higher-end middle-aged individuals
seeking superior hair care services. The expansion of hair extension
services with a variety of hair products including those addressing
hair loss issue due to age or other external factors will offer them
additional hair style options and helps rejuvenate their appearances.
Alongside with the continuing evolution and modification of business
strategies to develop our existing businesses, the Group will
proactively explore and exploit every potentially profitable business,
including but not limited to collaboration with strategic partners in the
hair goods industry as the opportunity arises.

Hospitality Service Business

Turnover of the segment increased 117% to HK$31,393,000 with
segment profit of HK$3,540,000. Increase in turnover was mainly
attributed to increase in revenue of two existing guesthouses and
hostels and a hotel with 22 rooms in Yau Ma Tei was added to
our portfolio in January this year. Turnover of both Sheung Wan
guesthouse and North Point hostel increased 76% and 47%
respectively compared to the year before. Average daily rate for
Sheung Wan guesthouse and North Point hostel increased 73%
and 46% respectively compared to 2022 during the pandemic
while maintaining the high occupancy rate of about 90%. The newly
operated Yau Ma Tei Hotel commanded higher room rate being
unique in the market for its sizeable rooms fitted with a separated
seating area and a kitchenette to target a niche in family travellers.
Other than contributing to the segment revenue the overall average
daily rate increased 99% year on year. Decrease in segment profit
was mainly attributed to the absence in the year under review of
government subsidies amounted to HK$943,600 received during
the pandemic in 2022. Without the government subsidies of
HK$943,600, the segment profit increased 27% in comparison with
the 2022 pandemic year. The financial improvement in the segment
is encouraging considering (i) segment related finance cost increased
by about 125% in between the two years due to high interest rate (ii)
non routine repair and maintenance expenditure was incurred during
the reviewing year to touch up and upgrade fixtures and fittings in
some of the rooms and (i) Yau Ma Tei operation did not make positive
contribution given it was still in the start up stage to put a team
together and optimize the operation.
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Along with the China border opening and the gradual growth in
conference, trade shows and events, the Hong Kong Tourism Board
(“HKTB”) announced 34 million full year visitor arrivals in Hong Kong
in 2023 compared to just 0.6 million in 2022. The average number of
daily visitor arrivals has rebounded to over 50% of the pre-pandemic
level. Statistically the Mainland remained the largest source market for
Hong Kong while the South East Asian markets recovered the most
quickly. By travel purpose, number of MICE (Meetings, Incentives,
Conferences and Exhibitions) travellers recovered to about 70%
of that before the pandemic, suppressing the leisure segment and
making it the fastest recovering segment. These increases fuelled the
rising occupancy and average room rate letting growth in revenue in
this business segment.

In the past year, HKTB focussed on reconnecting Hong Kong with
visitors around the world and drive the steady recovery of Hong
Kong’s tourism. A series of mega events were brought back to
strengthen the positive ambience locally and campaigns like “Hello
Hong Kong” and “Night Vibes Hong Kong” were promoted to revitalise
tourism and spending. Upcoming HKTB will continue to capitalize
on the latest global travel trends and consumer demand, conducting
targeted promotions in various visitor source markets to boost
travellers’ interest to visit Hong Kong. The city is getting ready to
welcome a new wave of Mainland tourists as Qingdao and Xian were
recently added to list of eligible cities under Individual Visit Scheme.
Even with all those government’s initiatives to promote tourism,
recovery in the hospitality industry will still be hindered in the near
term from staffing shortages in the aviation sector, rising energy cost
and high travel cost given until now flight capacity is still far below
pre-pandemic level. Local staycation demand has softened with many
locals spending on short haul trips to popular destination like Japan
and across the border in Shenzhen and other cities in the Greater
Bay Area. To further amplify the challenges, many inbound Mainland
visitors elected to spend the day in Hong Kong but not the night
acutely aware of the wide disparity of room rates in the city versus
across the border. With that said, however if Hong Kong is compared
to global gateway cities say Rome, Paris, London, Tokyo and New
York, there is still ample runway for its room rates to increase.
This probably suggests a fine balance is needed to address the
competitiveness, sensitivity and attractiveness of the city’s hotels at
various consumer price points to address the needs of both Mainland
and international guests.
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Operational efficiency and increase in revenue growth will continue to
be top priorities for the business segment for 2024. We foresee future
growth will be arduous because of increasing competition among
the players in the market as well as changing guest preferences
for instance, growing number of guests favour Environment, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) supportive hotels. We are in an era of a
different type of travellers, one who is more informed and demanding.
As hotel operators, we are becoming increasingly aware of the
need to embrace sustainability and broader ESG principals in the
business and to implement ESG measures within our capabilities to
demonstrate our commitment to environmental standards, energy
and water efficiency and waste management.

Securities Investments

In January 2023, the Hong Kong stock market reached its peak
for the year, as hopes for reopening boosted investors’ sentiment.
However the market was on a downward trend for the remainder of
the year due to several factors. Initially, uncertainties arising from
the US regional banking crisis and the outlook for Federal Reserve
rates impacted market confidence. Later concerns over Beijing’s
crackdown on the tech sector and a prolonged property slump as
well as a slowdown in production activity and consumption further
exacerbated the market’s decline. In 2023 Hang Seng Index was
down by 14% and market turnover of securities market at Hong Kong
Stock Exchange decreased by about 16% compared to the previous
year. Hong Kong stock market ended 2023 as one of the year’s worst
performers. The fair value loss for the year under review increased 1%
to HK$11,560,000 on the securities investments held as at year end.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$51,098,000 (31
December 2022: HK$58,940,000). The securities investments
portfolio comprised Hong Kong blue chips and REITs with reasonable
yield on dividend income and good liquidity. Dividend income from
securities investments amounted to HK$2,935,000 was recorded in
the reviewing year. Hong Kong’s stock property is presently grossly
undervalued. Many stocks that have healthy outlook and which offer
an attractive dividend have a price-to-earnings ratio that is very
low by international standards. Conventionally high interest rate
has downward pressure on asset prices including securities. When
the business environment of China and Hong Kong improves and
interest rate reduces, prices of the Group’s securities investment will
eventually rise to reflect its intrinsic value.
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The Group’s significant investments (i.e. investment with carrying AEBR_Z_=F+_A=+—HEHEAZ
amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group) held as at 31 & AR E(AEEERBANAEEEEHEBE%
December 2023 are as follows: ZRE)AT
Approximate
Approximate percentage
percentage Dividend Fair of total
held to income for value loss assets of
the total the year  for the year the Group at
issued share ended ended Fair 31 December
capital of 31 December 31 December value at 2023
the company/ 2023 2023 31 December ER
investment Bz Bz 2023 —EC-CE
FiERAE  Investment  —B-=f&  -—%-=f 3 +=A
No. of A7,/  cost/cost of T8 T=A Sk =t+-AH
shares held REC®{T  acquisition =+-H =t+-H8 +Z4 by |
Company name/(stock code) G RABE RERK,/ LEEY ILEEZ =+-H8 BEBE
DA%B/ (RHKS) #H L E R Wy B B K RERA AYHEBR ZAYVE BRI
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 %
% BRI BETR BRI BRI %
Link Real Estate Investment Trust (823)
BREHEREETEL629) 846,117 0.033% 71,220 2,095 (9,533) 37,102 8.9%
Note 1: Link Real Estate Investment Trust is a Hong Kong-based real estate /a7 - EREHEREEXESRUBTEREM Y
investment trust (Link REIT). The investment objectives of Link REIT are to EWEREET(EEEEES)  -BREE
deliver sustainable growth and to create long-term value for its unit holders. EeHNREBEAERIKELRITAHE
It invests and manages a diversified portfolio of properties, including retail NUFBABEREERE HIREAREERZ T
facilities, car parks, offices and logistics centres spanning from China’s tier fLRMEEE  BIEEPE—EET LR
one cities (Beijing, Shanghai), Greater Bay Area (Hong Kong, Guangzhou £8) - RER(EE - BMNERIDEFHN
and Shenzhen) to Singapore, United Kingdom’s London and Australia’s ¥ REGALEMNEERBRARNTER
Sydney and Melbourne. M FES - FRERRRL
Note 2: During the year 2023, the Group acquired 141,019 units by rights ~ Afat2 - RZZZ=FF  AEBEAHERKRRET K
subscription. #141,0191E 887 -
Note 3: The Group will hold the investment for dividend income and to reduce the — A7##3 - REBBIFEZREUBIRSBA -

investment when the unit price increases to a reasonable level.

%
REBBUEEAZTREKFEHRIRE -
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Property Project Management Business

During the year under review, no income was recorded and there
was no project completed or in progress due to the failure to secure
renovation projects from new home buyers amid the very sluggish
property market. Segment incurred a profit of HK$8,000 after the
write back in 2023 of professional expenses overprovided in the
previous yeatr.

As the economy and the property market further recover, we strive
to revive the business segment by collaborating with local renowned
architect/interior designer to explore into new projects.

Other Business Segments

The Group engaged in the money lending business through an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Century Legend Finance Limited
(“CLF”), which holds a money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance to carry out money lending business in Hong
Kong. During the year under review, the money lending business
recorded turnover of HK$81,000 and segment profit was HK$1,000.

In 2023 CLF entered into three unsecured personal loans amounted
to HK$2,560,000 in aggregate out of which HK$2,000,000 was a
loan renewed upon maturity and the borrower repaid HK$300,000
subsequent to the renewal. As at year ended 31 December 2023
the Group had not incurred any impairment on the outstanding loan
receivable.

We expect operation in this segment to be minimal and customers
served are normally on referral basis with careful consideration to
credit risk exposure. Management has formulated a fundamental
policy to establish its internal control systems. The Group would
adopt a prudent approach and conduct regular reviews of the
composition of the loan portfolio and lending rates charged to each
customer to maximize the return of the money lending business and
diversify the credit risks. Funding for the money lending business is by
the Group’s internal resources.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a cash and bank
balance of HK$11,690,000 and net current liabilities of
HK$80,842,000. The current ratio (calculated as the current
assets to the current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December
2023 was approximately 0.47 (31 December 2022: 0.73).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. The directors consider that the Group’s
exposure to the fluctuations in exchange rates was minimal.

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment and
certain investment properties of the Group were pledged to
two banks to secure the bank borrowing of approximately
HK$129,403,000, which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and bearing interest at floating rate. The Group did not have
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: Nil). There is no capital commitments as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total equity of
HK$252,474,000, fixed rate liability of HK$11,367,000, floating
rate liability of HK$129,403,000 and interest-free liabilities
of HK$24,503,000, representing 5%, 51% and 10% of the
Group’s total equity, respectively. The gearing ratio (calculated
as the total long term loan to the total shareholders’ equity) of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 was approximately 4% (31
December 2022: 5%).

Significant Investments, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
disposed a wholly-owned subsidiary which holds a Taikoo
Shing investment property at consideration of HK$8,300,000
and recorded loss on disposal of HK$900,000.
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VL.

Employment Information

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed approximately
a total of 44 employees (2022: 45). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$13,005,000 (2022: HK$11,710,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Dividend Policy

When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board needs to consider potential opportunities and risks
existing in the Company’s operation and development as
well as assess various factors, regardless of whether they
are financial or operational, internal or external, in the past or
the future, microeconomic or macroeconomic. The payment
of dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board.
The Board may decide the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare or recommend any special distributions.
Dividend may be declared or paid by way of cash or scrip
or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board will conduct
supervision and review from time to time and there can be no
assurance that dividend will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Board shall discuss amendments to
this policy when necessary.
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Geopolitical tensions and weaken global economic growth
momentum will continue to impact the global market in 2024.
Macroeconomic headwinds lie ahead with uncertainties include the
the ongoing unresolved warfare between Russia and Ukraine and
in addition, the outbreak of Israel-Hamas war in October 2023. The
latter conflict led to humanitarian crisis and protests to call for a
ceasefire occurred across the world. There have been speculations
about the potential for the conflict to expand and escalate into a
region wide conflict to plunge global economy through reduced
regional commerce, escalated energy costs and diminished consumer
assurance. Globally, with 2024 being the biggest election year in
history, the drag of political uncertainty worldwide on economy
remains and may persist throughout the year. Meanwhile structural
issues continue to affect China’s economy and Beijing has recognized
overcapacity as a major challenge for 2024 with US & European
Union anti-dumping probes and tariffs disrupting trades. But recently
there has been an acceleration of stimulus rollouts by the Mainland
Government and sets 2024 GDP growth target of about 5% which is
viewed as both necessary and feasible.

At home the capital market was subdued in 2023 mainly attributable
to sharp interest rate hike and the slower than expected economic
recovery. At the start of this year there was more optimism on early
rate cuts by the Fed until Fed Chair, Jerome Powell, reiterated in early
March that he expected interest rates to start coming down this year
but was not ready yet to say when. After a two day meeting held, the
Fed announced on 20 March 2024 that rates would be unchanged at
5.25%-5.5% where they have been since July last year but signalled it
still expects to cut rates three times this year. Therefore the wider view
of the market now is that interest rates have peaked and stabilized
for the moment before gradually declining in the 2H2024. While the
pace of interest cuts this year remains the primary focus in the market,
meanwhile the current high interest charges will continue to weigh
on the Group’s bottom line financial performance overshadowing
improvements made in our business operations as we forge ahead.
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Looking ahead, both Hong Kong and Macau economies are expected
to remain positive in 2024 powered by the ongoing resurgence of
tourism and the government’s continued economic stimulus. Hong
Kong Financial Secretary, Paul Chan, said he expected the economy
to grow 2.5%-3.5% this year as he announced certain measures to
bolster a flagging property market to support the economy. A remark
from the Secretary for Economy & Finance of Macau, Lei Wai Nong,
was cited that Macau’s GDP growth in 2024 to reach about 10%,
representing a recovery to about 90% of the 2019 level. In each
of the cities’ respective policy address for 2024, amongst various
fiscal measures to revitalise the local economy and improve people’s
livelihoods, great emphasis has been placed to promote Hong Kong
and Macau tourism. Over 80 mega events in a variety of themes and
genres will be staged in Hong Kong in 1H2024 and HKD100 million
is earmarked to boost mega event promotions over the next 3 years.
One of the highlights is for Hong Kong, Guangdong Province and
Macau to cohost the 15th National Games in 2025. Similarly the
Macau SAR government will spend an estimated MOP235 million this
year to attract international visitors to Macau by actively promoting
Macau in overseas destinations through roadshows and subsidizing
airline tickets to Macau. Moreover the continued development of
infrastructure will improve access to Macau and movement within
Macau for leisure and tourism visitors. With all these government
initiatives to boost tourism, the wishful thinking is that the Group’s
hospitality service business in Hong Kong will benefit with improving
segment results and also give data support into the feasibility study of
expanding the hospitality service business in Macau.

It is hoped and expected that the economies in Hong Kong and
Macau would gradually recover in 2024 but the state of the macro
environment still poses uncertainties over the pace of recovery. The
Group is cautious about the market outlook and exercises due care
in exploring new business opportunities while strengthening existing
business. It is believed that that through the efforts of all employees,
the Group will overcome the current difficult operating environment.
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The Group always strives for being an outstanding member of the
communities in the territories it operates, Hong Kong and Macau.
As such, each year the management would set targets to achieve
goals of community care and environment protection by actively
participating in various social services. In the future the Group shall
continue to seek innovative and meaningful ways to engage its
employees and associates in building stronger and more vibrant
communities.

During the year 2023, the Group was honoured with the following
awards:

- “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for 16 years in succession

- “Good MPF Employer” by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority for 9 years in succession

S “Manpower Developer” by the Employee Retraining Board
in “Manpower Developer Award Scheme” for 5 consecutive
sessions

- “Social Capital Builder” award by the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for 5 continuous sessions

- “Hong Kong Green Organization” accredited by Environmental
Campaign Committee since January 2018

- accredited as “Happy Company” (organized by Hong Kong
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council) since May 2020 and have committed to
develop corporate caring, wisdom, toughness and motivation
S0 as to provide a happy workplace for staff

- Hong Kong Awards Environment Excellence by Environmental
Campaign Committee for pursuit of environmental initiatives
and participation since 2019

The Group is always firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and a
more detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of our
activities during the year will be posted in our company’s website
later.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. The analysis of the principal
activities and geographical locations of the operations are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 64 to 67.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
management discussion and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2023, if any, can also be
found in the abovementioned sections and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in management discussion
and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the Company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The Company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
Company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The Group is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and
disclosing Environmental, Social and Governance Report during the
year.
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There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital
and no share option was granted under the Company’s share option
scheme as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019 (“Scheme”) during the
year under review. Details of the Company’s share capital and details
of the Scheme are set out in notes 29 and 30 respectively to the

financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any invested entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as

a whole.

2. The Participants of the Scheme to whom Option(s) may
be granted by the Board shall include Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, professional or service providers of any
member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

38 Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 29,347,742 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this

annual report is 9%.

4, Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the

Company.

53 The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter

period as the Board may determine.
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6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7. Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is

HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme is 5 years (expiring on 29 May
2029).

Details of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any of its Associated Corporation”. There is no
movement on share options during the year 2023.
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The following table discloses the Company’s share options held by
each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company
and the employees of the Company granted under the Scheme during
the year 2023:

Outstanding

Exercise at

priceper 1 January

Name of participant Date of grant Validity period Share HK$ 2023
(Note)

BEARL RLAH L SREMTRE
(M)
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syia 14 September 14 September 2016 to 3,096,000
Director and substantial 2016 13 September 2026
shareholder of the ZE-AERR ZE-AERATEAR
Company tRH ZEIENATER
e 19 September 19 September 2017 to 3,096,000
EERANALERR 2017 18 September 2027
ZE-tEAR ZE-tEAATARE
ThA ZECHEAATIR
3 October 3 October 2018 to 3,096,000
2018 2 October 2028
“5-\§th=R ZF-/\EtAzRZ
ZEC\ETAZH
16 Qctober 16 October 20190 4 3,260,000
2019 15 October 2029
Z5-RATR ZENETATRAR
A ZENETATERA
Total 12,548,000
ai

Note:  The closing prices per share immediately before 14 September 2016, 19
September 2017, 3 October 2018 and 16 October 2019 (the date on which the
share options were granted) were HK$0.73, HK$0.69, HK$0.395 and HK$0.25
respectively.

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December
2023.
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Outstanding

Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled at
duringthe  duringthe  duringthe during the 31 December
year2023  year2023  year2023  year2023 2023

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

12,548,000
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At 31 December 2023, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$14,177,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$199,801,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 68 and in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 167
to 168.

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$129,403,000 (2022: HK$208,891,000). Particulars
of borrowings are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$13,000 (2022: HK$19,000).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on page 30 of the Annual Report.

The Group regards the executive directors, a director of subsidiaries
and the heads of functional departments as members of the senior
management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
team were within the following bands:

AR B 5 47 22
AEBRBERERRFEZ ERAREE
REEHERNECHE -

e **iﬁ/\
ﬁAz}s*&ﬁtEHﬁ
FIHEI0E -

REBAENBEHNA

AEBERRTESE WEARES LB
FTERSMERBEHRKE -

ENRENSREEASZHEHENT :

Number of individuals

Emolument bands < & &
Nil = HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000

T ZF #%1,000,0007T

7E#1,000,001 7T 2 4 #2,000,0007T
7B 2,000,001 T & 74 #3,000,0007T
713,000,001 72 /8% 4,000,0007T

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investments business. The five major suppliers of the
Group were attributable to hair styling and hospitality services. The
percentages of the sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 3%
— five largest customers combined 5%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 28%
— five largest suppliers combined 79%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 29 May 2024 to
Monday, 3 June 2024 (both dates inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2103B, 21st Floor, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong by not
later than 4:30p.m. on Tuesday, 28 May 2024.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. LAU Pui Wing

Ms. Ho Ting Mei

Mr. Wu BinQuan

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania,
Mr. Hui Yan Kit and Mr. Lau Pui Wing shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for two to three
years until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than one month prior written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Other than the share option schemes as mentioned earlier, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
no permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise).

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

AL (RE) ARAF - ZF - =FEH

DIRECTORS' REPORT * # I & i 45

B £ XAt 0 BB B R BISh - REFERE M
fi - 782 @) 3 B AL AR Y 8 w4 5 AR AE )
R EARREFTABARRALIME
A NE R Z B D BB Z5 1 M B ERFl a3

B BERRMIICMBMEEIN - F&
Rk FREARRE - ARF - HEAHRBA
A ARMBRASERAFBERITNF
EEMUAEEXBMEBEAN - BARRA
EERARREFHRERERAMBEAER
THEEARGEZEMEERS  ZHHE
#] o

ARARDWEBIBBUIFATEETRET B
ERGMBERABAEBERFLWAR(T EHR
A1) EIABGEFHARENBILIE - A2
ARRERBYIINTESTARBILAL -

EX ARRXZERRABEESEEEMNER
56 5 A\ B R 0 O BE A E NI B R AR E
EGBARAUEBRERAMBERFNE
B REAEEHREMEANEER M
ARE ETHRRNTARKE -

REARBEARNRE BB IEERESRE - $E
AARBEAEZTRAE 5 AR A BE R
(PimEBHARRRI)EX

CRAN/NCINEE S TR
BRI R o

RERNLFERR



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2023

DIRECTORS' REPORT * # & & #z 15

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 50, brother of the Company’s
Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed
as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004
respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning,
business development and general management. Mr. Tsang is a
director of ST (79) Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and
Barsmark Investments Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders
of the Company, and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited,
the holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working
with international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 49, sister of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, was appointed
as Executive Director in 2010. She is now responsible for the sales
and leasing in the property investments business segment of the
Group. Ms. Tsang is also a director of ST (79) Investment and
Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the Company and a director
of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of ST (79)
Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 66, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. LAU Pui Wing, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2017. He is a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also an associate of the Hong
Kong Institution of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He now runs a professional accountancy firm and has over 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance.

Ms. HO Ting Mei, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2020. She received her tertiary education
in United States and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree majoring
in marketing. Ms. HO has solid experience in both conventional
and digital marketing, business development, corporate relations
and digital media. Being an entrepreneur, her business covers
brand development as well as strategic and tactical marketing
with innovative concepts for corporates, products or services;
establishment of global distributing network and in addition, public
relation and corporate communication to source and build an
extensive network including government agencies and NGOs and
collaborate business opportunities across different industries on new
project or campaign development.

Mr. WU BinQuan, aged 70, as appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2022. Mr. Wu holds professional diploma in
International Accounting from Beijing Economic Correspondence
University, professional diploma in Commercial Accounting from
Shenzhen University (Correspondence). He received his training
in hotel management in Mainland China and has over 28 years of
experience in hotel industry. He was financial controller, acting
general manager, project controller in finance for different hotels or
resorts in Guangzhou, Xian, Haikou, Suzhou, Shengyang, Beijing and
Philippines.
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Mr. WU had been an executive director of the Company for the
period from February 2006 to September 2011. He was responsible
to oversee the finance and operation of the Group’s hotel related
investment in Macau. Mr. Wu had been a director of an associated
company of the Group for the period from February 2006 to March
2008 acting as a hotel owner’s representative in Macau to whom the
hotel management reported on the hotel’s finance and operation.
Before Mr. Wu resigned from the Group, he was responsible for
Group’s property investment in Macau.

Senior Management

Mr. KWOK Tsz Kit, aged 48, became a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in December 2019 in operation of the Group’s newly
developed hospitality business. Mr. KWOK, founder of “HOMY”
budget hotel chain, is a pioneer in budget hotel segment of the
hospitality industry with comprehensive knowledge and market
sensitivity. He has been appointed by the HKSAR Home Affairs
Department to become a member of the Advisory Panel on Licensing
of Hotels and Guesthouses for 2020 to 2024 representing the hotels
and guesthouses industry. As a director of Hong Kong Association of
Hostels, Mr. KWOK committed to foster the long term development
of the guesthouse industry and often stands up to voice out to the
respective authorities expressing collective views on government
policies relevant to the industry as well as its practitioners.

Mr. KWOK oversees the Group’s hospitality business operation and
development.

Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 54, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 30 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.
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Ms. Wong Yim Tsui Amy, aged 62, joined the Group in 1999 and
was promoted Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate
Affairs in 2005. She is tertiary educated in The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resources Management since 1991. Ms. Wong has over 30
years’ human resources experience in various industries including
finance, retail and servicing and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management to cope with corporate planning for business
development.

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i)
Company
Name of
company in

Name of Director

EEns

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
RHRR KL

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
BRIt

Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
KRB L

Nature of interests

BENE

Interest of controlled
corporation
XEHEEE S

Interest of controlled
corporation
SRS EEER

Beneficial interests

EnEn

Interest of controlled
corporation

XEHEEES

Interest of controlled
corporation
XS EEE R

Beneficial interests

N

Bt

which ordinary
shares/securities
are held
REREE
ZER BH2
NEER

The Company
ARA]
The Company
ARA]
The Company
AN
The Company
A7)
The Company
AN

The Company
ARA]

Number of
Ordinary
shares/
securities
held

FEEER,/
EHHE

19,329,195
(Note 1 and 3)
19,329,195
(PHEE1%3)
88,275,577
(Note 2 & 3)
88,275,577
(HfEE2 K 3)

3,064,000
3,064,000
19,329,195
(Note 1 and 3)
19,329,195
(Bi3E1 R3)
88,275,577
(Note 2 & 3)
88,275,577
(FfsE2 % 3)

16,371,826
16,371,826

REQTRG REERD 2 #E

Approximate
percentage
of total
shareholding

ERBREZ
BREDH

5.93%

5.93%

27.07%

27.07%

0.94%

0.94%

5.93%

5.93%

27.07%

27.07%

5.02%
5.02%



Notes:

1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments
Limited.

2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited.

3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST

(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned by
ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of Fortune
Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued capital of which is vested
in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-administrators of
the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching), Conba Investments Limited (a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel)
and Ssky Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors of Barsmark Investments
Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited and ST Investments. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments Limited. Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(ii) Interests in the Share options of the Company

Name of Director/
Chief Executive
-4
FTETBRAEHRE

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia
LB+

Date of grant of
share options

RiBEERY

14 September
2016

—E-R"FNA
+HA

19 September
2017

ZT—tFNA
+1R

3 October 2018
—ZT-N\FTA
=H

16 October 2019
—T-AE+A
+5H

Exercisable period

T

14 September 2016 to
13 September 2026
—E-RENATHAZE

—E-RENAATZ=H

19 September 2017 to
18 September 2027
—E—+EAATAEE

—E-t+EAATNR

3 October 2018 to

2 October 2028

“E-\F+A=H=Z
“Z-NF+AZH

16 October 2019 to
15 October 2029
ZE-NE+ATAREE
ZZEZAFE+ATAA

(i) REXTBREZEDS

Exercise
price per

Share (HK$)

BR

TEEGES)

0.732

0.732

0.698

0.698

0.395

0.395

0.25

0.25

Number

of options
outstanding
i RAT6E
BREZE

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

3,260,000

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
EARARREZ
SR

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

1.00%

1.00%



The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2023, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the

Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above.

Long position in shares

Name

nE/EB

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1)
Barsmark Investments Limited (Ff{5E1)

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1)
ST (79) Investment Limited (Fi#3E1)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1)

ST Investments Holding Limited (B 3E1)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1)

BEREARAR(MEL)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1)

Ssky Investments Limited (FfzE1)

Nature of interests

BENE

Beneficial Interest

-

ey

it
Bk

\

Beneficial Interest

B A JHE N
BEanEn

Interest of controlled
corporation
TR EEER

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E R

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E R

AL (SR AR

AW o ZFEARER
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R-ZZT-_=F+-RA=+—H  RBREZFLFE
B IEIZE336IEMR B 2 EEMEERLM
BRAARIECEERBARARID BITIRAS%
SN E2FTEREEE AR ZBHMUNT -
WERETINLBRCESRETETHRAR

2R ASNE o

R 2HFR

Number of
shares held

FERE

19,329,195
19,329,195

88,275,577
88,275,577

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(BifsE2)

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
UE#

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(P5E2)

Approximate
percentage of
total shareholding
hHEEREZ
BRABD

5.93%
5.93%

27.07%
27.07%

33%

33%

33%

33%

33%

33%
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Name

mE/EB

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1)

Fortune Ocean Limited (FfizE1)

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi (Note 3)
FRBLL RIS Lt (MF3)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited

(Note 4)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited

GE

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (B ¥4)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Ff3F4)

Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 4)

A EE L (Ff5E4)

Nature of interests

REME

Interest of controlled
corporation
TS EEE RS

Beneficial Interest

(=AW T
EnEn

Interest of controlled
corporation

R AR

Beneficial interest

N/ogoe

BaifEs

BX

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E R

Interest of controlled
corporation
TG EEER

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEHEE S

Number of
shares held

s RE

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(Pt 5E2)

784,125
784,125

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(F5E2)
50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

Approximate
percentage of
total shareholding
hHEEREZ
BRABDHE

33%

33%

0.24%

0.24%

33%

33%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%



Notes:

Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly
and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited, the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-third by each of (i) Conba
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel); (i) Fortune Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued
capital of which is vested in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-
administrators of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (i) Ssky Investments
Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia).

These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by
Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited.

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi are co-administrators of the estate
of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, whose beneficial interest and interest of controlled
corporation in shares of the Company are entirely vested in co-administrators.

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by Szeto
Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is wholly-
owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly
and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Szeto International
Holdings Limited

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit
Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui Wing, Ms. HO Ting Mei and
Mr. Wu BinQuan. Four meetings were held during the current
financial year. Audit Committee had met with the management of the
Company and the auditors to have audit planning, review the interim
and final results, considered the significant accounting policies, and
discussed with the management matters relating to the Group’s
internal audit and internal control system. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2023, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rule”) except for certain areas of non-compliance that are
discussed later in this report.

The Board believes that good corporate governance culture is
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value and formulate its
business strategies and policies. Corporate actions are carried out
by following the corporate value & spirit of “integrity, compliance and
care for stakeholders” in order to achieve continuous success and
sustainable growth.

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the Company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.
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The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises seven Directors, three
of them are women, more than half of the Directors are non-executive
and independent of management, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s
businesses. Three of the Directors are executive, namely Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and four of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui
Wing, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan. Each of Directors’
respective biographical details is set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors” of this annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors
that the Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate
for discharging their duties as Directors in the best interest of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. LAU Pui Wing has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules,
the Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence to the
Company.
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The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Group, including the Board and senior management:

Board (as at the date of this report) Exe(NAFHEHE)

As at 31 December 2023: R_EB_=F+_R=+—
Senior management SREBEAE

Other employees HiES

Overall workforce B T E KX

The women representations on the Board and the Group’s workforce
are 43% and 69% respectively. The Board considers the current
gender diversity of the Group is satisfactory.

ExeR T =FhARMEZzEZ Tt
BR(EFEZTIEREK]) - ARAFER
REEEEEREZTEERNER - BE
E=ZeNMEREREENR AR ZEE
B ARARBHREETSERERERTH
HREDELAGBZERBUNAGARRERE
FE - ARAKRZHEENBREREAN B

EETRNER - FiR - XERBEESR -
R (BREME) - BEEARAE -

ARAERAEEERANOMERNZ T - T

FENNAEBE TEBEMERLR @ BIFE
EeNEREEA
Female Male
i B
43% 57%
(3) 4)
43% 57%
(8%) (44)
H :
67% 33%
2) 1)
67% 33%
(2%8) (14)
74% 26%
(28) (10)
74% 26%
(284) (10%)
69% 31%
(33) (15)
69% 31%
(33%) (15%)

BEEeNAEFETEBRNLZERRD A
43% K 69% ° T E @ im = AN B IE A% R
%k »
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The Board believes that independent views and input can enhance the
Board’s decision-making process and therefore make fair and proper
decisions and corporate actions.

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board which, including but not
limited to, the composition of the Board and Board committees,
ensure the independence of all independent non-executive directors,
emphasis on independence in the decision making process,
compensation structure, availability of independent professional
advice and opinions. The Board will conduct a review annually
to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of the aforesaid
mechanisms.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Ms. TSANG
Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group.
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No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the attendance records
of individual Director at the Board meeting which is held at least four
times each year, meetings of three Board Committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

Board
E=g
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel DR A&

(Chairman and the Chief Executive — (F/E#7TE#E#)

Officer) 3/4
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia =LA p o 4/4
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KAZELZL 4/4
Independent BUHBTEE

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit AFABELE 4/4
Mr. LAU Pui Wing BIHaR LA 4/4
Ms. HO Ting Mei EEz+ 4/4

Mr. WU BinQuan REEEE 4/4

HREFERAAEEEETARARE @ &
WARERNEEBERE -

HE_T-_=F+_A=+—HIFE " @
MEEHESFELPRTONANEETS SR
UWEk=-ZAEEeZ 82 (AEZEES 24
ZEghFNEZE2 ) 2R LELENT -

Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of meeting held
HEERNE FBTNEERY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee = Committee Committee

ENZEE REZEES FHEES

0/0 0/0 0/0
0/0 0/0 0/0
0/0 0/0 0/0
4/4 1/1 1/1
4/4 0/0 0/0
4/4 1/1 1/1
4/4 1/1 1/1
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During the year, the Company convened 1 general meeting on 2 June
2023 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. Details
of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel WA R LA
(Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTEAEZ)

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia BRI A+

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KAAER+

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFBITEE

Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFABEE A
Mr. LAU Pui Wing BHee s &
Ms. HO Ting Mei s a4+
Mr. WU BinQuan SR ESE

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

FR ARAFR-_ZE-_=FE~A=-BBH—
RIERRE  IARARBZBRERBFAS - &
EHEFBOT :

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held
HESBRE
FRIETHNERIRE

0/1
1/1
1/1

0/1
1/1
1/1
0/1

REBELETHZTAEXEC A% 28E
ERSMFHEEEERRTE UERRERN
BEZMBRED  BERREEEEAER
HEMMDEMBENBEATHESTSHFLE
Ble RRABBRBELZHREYNEI - LEE
EBEARRIERZAG  BREMEE-
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, according to the records
provided by the Directors, the individual training record of each
Director received for the year is summarized below:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel B KL
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia A 8 20 &
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KL+
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFABEE
Mr. LAU Pui Wing RHee S &
Ms. HO Ting Mei s a2+
Mr. WU BinQuan SR ESE

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with
each of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst
other things, their term of offices for a period of two to three years
until terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s prior
notice in writing to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting of the
Company.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.

BE_T_=F+-_A=1+—RHLEFE R
FREFRENLE  BREENFANE
RIBIILERIT

Attending training
courses/seminars/reading
materials relevant to the
director’s duties
HEEA e

B B S 55 A0 B 1Y B AR

A N NI N N N

EWTEFCEARBFURBEH - NF
BE IR AME  HRSEEH  BEEER
—TAR—TELATIRANERZEE B
FTURRIERL - IBEEFYERBARAZ
NEARAI(TAR D ER - REERREBF K
G LWFERIE -

ARREEBIIFATERILRBEL
ETARARSZENAME=F - EEEM
—TAR—HELATNIR—ERZEEBHM
FTUARIERLE - I - WETFARARAE
ERRBFRE L@WFERE -
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Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) to the Board by
giving due consideration to the criteria, including but not limited to
Board diversity, qualifications, experience, independence, reputation
for integrity and potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board before making recommendation to the Board. The
Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate
in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the candidate(s) by
interviews, background checks etc.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. HO Ting Mei, Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr.
WU BinQuan. Ms. HO Ting Mei is the chairman of the committee.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting, to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of the
Group steadlily.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans
Tania, Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr. LAU Pui Wing will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. HUI Yan Kit was
appointed as independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2004. He has been the independent non-executive Director of the
Company for over 19 years.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2023, the Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting
Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the Chairman of the
Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

3 In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4, Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior
managements of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration
packages for Directors of the Company. The recommended
remuneration packages have been approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of five members, namely, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia (Executive Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
(Executive Director), Ms. SZE Tak On (Financial Controller) and
Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy (Vice President of Human Resources &
Corporate Affairs). The Executive Committee shall normally meet on a
monthly basis and in any event no less than quarterly.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (ii) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (i) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises four members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2023, the
members are Mr. LAU Pui Wing (the Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan all of whom are
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and associated procedures, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and
auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held four
meetings, during which the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022, the interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2023 were reviewed and audit planning for year ended 31 December
2022 and 2023. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board
Practices” of this report for the attendance record of individual
Audit Committee members. All these meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

° state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 58 to 63.

The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (i) whistleblowing
policy and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity. The procedures
enable the Whistleblower to report the possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Group directly addressed to relevant personnel.
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AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been
audited by BDO.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, BDO, the external auditor of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:
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BETT SR IT
Audit services ZE R 550 640
Non-audit services IERZBAR TS - -
Total: &5t 640

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
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The Board has engaged a consultant company to conduct internal
audit function in order to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems during the year and is of
the view that the systems of risk management and internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2023 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in
safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 32 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2023.

In view of certain amendments to the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Bermuda, a special resolution was passed to adopt new bye-
laws of the Company at the 2023 annual general meeting held on 2
June 2023.

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting
will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.

Overall, the Company considers the shareholders’ communication
policy of the Group to be effective and adequate. The Company
will continue to review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy by shareholders’ feedback from
the above channel.
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EiE © +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
R (R ERAA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 166, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
20283, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.9, 4(a) and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be HK$114,300,000 at 31 December 2023.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties to support management’s estimates. The valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment, including recent market information
about prices for comparable properties with potentially significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

We identified valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significant balance of investment properties to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and that significant
amount of management judgement and estimation being required in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

- evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property
industry; and

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used and the resultant calculations.

AL (RE) ARAF - “F - =AFEH

T 57 A% R

BREZLFASREESNERHE  RA
HAHMRASEMBEREANEZR/EENS
He BENERERGAVBRREENLSE
SERRHEFEAER  MAEREEFEERE
BRERER -

BEYEMGE
(AR A I TS TR R MI7ES.9 ~ 4(a) & 15)

EREME BREZREVMERZ-FT
TZEEF A=+ -BZAFEAEER
114,300,0007T °

PIEREMEDCEEBIINESEE - U
SEEEB G  HEDRARRETEIER
HMZERIAFTEEEEBFHERSH
B ERERALBRYEERZOHTEE
B ERRERZEAILEDEE E5E
MEZRZHEEZRFHBEECHE -

MR RENREREGANBRRERT S
BEE  ABTASEEEZ HIBREHIX
BEAKEREANENATE  HESHI
AN GEBBREREE -

EEREEBHIREDEZGEMERZE
FeE

= FEBLIBIEBEMZER - EH K
HEM

- REEFHMERTERZIRE - FHEMR
RAZTEREERRZAEE &

- HEREARBBARBZERIER
MERAE - ARFTSAERER -



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2023

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai
Practising Certificate Number P0O6158

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

o TN &3

for the year ended 31 December 2023 * BZ—FE_-=F+=-H=1+—HIF&F

2023
—E-=
Notes HK$’000
M= BET T
Revenue g 5 53,037
Cost of revenue L&D ®N (31,326)
Gross profit EX 21,711
Other income H A 5 4,491
Fair value loss on financial assets at BAFEFABZZ
fair value through profit or loss W EE AT EEE (11,560)
Fair value loss on investment properties & & % 7 A FEEE 15 (4,700)
Administrative expenses TEFEX (29,849)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEE ZRBERE 14(c) (1,508)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBARIZERE 32(b) (900)
Finance costs & A AR 7 (10,814)
Loss before income tax BrFTISTEATE 18 8 (33,129)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrsfiEe, (Fx) 9 4,229
Loss for the year REEEE (28,900)
Other comprehensive income Hi2EUBA
Item that will not be reclassified HEKETEEHFTEZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmZ2EE
Changes in fair value of equity BAVEGAEMEE
instruments at fair value through other WAZRATERZ
comprehensive income N EEE
Other comprehensive income for AEZEHMEEEA
the year
Total comprehensive income for AEE2HEIALLE

the year

(28,454)

2022

—_—=——

HK$’000
BT

36,381
(18,920)

17,461

13,438
(11,410)

(2,800)

(36,369)
(1,993

(5,570)

(27,243)
(90)

(27,333)

(19)

(27,352)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

VARAF - ZFZFER

o R AT A R

for the year ended 31 December 2023 * #ZE —E - =4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

Loss for the year attributable to: LT REEERFERSE !
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ SN
Non-controlling interests JEFRRR HE
Total comprehensive income for DT EEEGARFE

the year attributable to: ZHEWBALE:
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A
Non-controlling interests IEPERR =
Loss per share BRERE

- Basic — &K

— Diluted —#E

2023 2022

—E-= —ZE-—

HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT

(28,736) (27,266)

(164) (67)

(28,900) (27,333)

(28,290) (27,285)

(164) (67)

(28,454) (27,352)

HK cents HK cents

b= 1 Al

(8.81) (8.36)
(8.81) (8.36)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A e B AR UL R

as at 31 December 2023 » R-—FE_-_=4#1+_-F=+—H

Notes
B =E

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 14
Investment properties WEME 15
Intangible assets mEEE 16
Financial assets at fair value through BAVERTAHM

other comprehensive income PHBACHEEE 17
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 28
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 18
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEGFAERZ

through profit or loss MIEEE 19
Other receivables, deposits and Hib U RN -

prepayments E& R FIE 20
Amount due from non-controlling interest [ U JE1% A% #E 25 3018 21
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITIF 22
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHERR 23
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables = E RN 24
Other payables and accruals E e BR R R FE AT 5RIE
Amounts due to shareholders JE < A% 3R 5K IE 25
Contract liabilities aHatE 26
Lease liabilities HEBR 34(a)
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(HER) 27
Net current liabilities nEAEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBRE

2023
—— =

e =

HK$’000
BT

227,209
114,300
2,100

torg
722

345,138

80
6,184
15,378
124
9,571
122,114

153,451

(80,842)

264,296

2022
e

—_<——

HK$’000
BETIT

226,534
128,200
2,100

5,007
449

362,290

150
58,940

7,999
10
86,248
15,088

168,435

328
7,797
15,000
70
5,558
201,181

229,934

(61,499)

300,791



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Mg g () FRAF - —F - SAFER

FINANCIAL POSITION * % &

R E NS

as at 31 December 2023 » R-FE_-=4#+_H=+—H

Notes
=3
Non-current liabilities kRnBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 34(a)
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FEM) 27
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIE B E 28
Net assets EEFHE
EQUITY s
Share capital A A 29
Reserves s 33
Equity attributable to the owners of KAaEB AELER
the Company
Non-controlling interests JEPERR HE
Total equity A

On behalf of the directors

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel
EHER
Director

EF

RERE=S

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
KEFE
Director

EF

2023

g =

HK$’000
BT

1,796
7,289
2,737

11,822

252,474

65,215
187,143

252,358
116

252,474

2022
o

—_—<

HK$’000
BETIT

5,460
7,710
6,693

19,863

280,928

65,215
215,433

280,648
280

280,928
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
G0t ) %
for the year ended 31 December 2023 ¢ #Z —ZE - =4+ _-HA=+—HIF/Z

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AR
Financial
assets
atfair value
through other
comprehensive Share
Share Share Capital  Revaluation income option  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
ROYE
AR
2EHAL
e it EXdR EGfiE  MHEERE  BRERE 2t At FEREE it
(Note 33(a)) Note 33(0)) (Note 33(c)) (Note 33(d))
(M) (hssw)  (hsss)  (Wsts)
HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$ 1000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000
AT Ay EBTT BT T 8T EETT BRI BT BT
At 1 January 2022 W-B-Z£-8-8 05,215 168,221 146,189 846 (1,879 3110 (64,275) 307,938 u 308,280
Loss for he year KERER = = = = = = (27,266) (27,266) 67 2733
Other comprehensive income LUETT N
- Changes in fair vaue of equity ~RATEIALSRE
insiruments t far vlue through other WAZBETIEZ
comprenensive income LTEEY - - - - 19 - - 19 = (19
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ AEF2ENALE - - - - (19) - (27,266) (27,285) 67) (27.359)
At 31 December 2022 i Dk g 4 05,215 188,201 146,189 846 (1,39) 3110 (91,541) 280,648 20 280928
At 1 January 2023 R-E-ZE-5-A 158,221 146,189 (1,398) (01,541) 280,648 280,928
Loss for the year KEgER - = > (28,736) (28,738) (28.900)
Other comprehensive income Ef2ERA
- Changes i fair value of equiy ~RATEIALSEE
instruments at fai vaue through other BARAIEZ
comprenensive income 1TERE
Total comprehensive income FERRENAEE
forthe year (28,736) 28,200 (28.454)

Transfer of financial assets at fair value through £ ERAFER AZH2ERA
other comprehensive income resene upon 2 RA T BEERRATE
the disposal of equty nstruments at fairvalue 3t AR 2 EMA 2B

through other comprehensive income HERE (122)
At 31 December 2023 - it gl o 65,215 168,221 146,189 3,10 (120,999) 252,358
* The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period @ REEHIR - W EHSIEZ A6

represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position. MEANZ [F#EHE] -

b
EI%VT\%

22,474




Mg g () FRAF - —F - SAFER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2023 * #Z —E - =F+-H=+—HIFFF

2023 2022
—E=—= —F-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
=3 BT T ST T
Cash flows from operating activities RJEEKELCREFTE
Loss before income tax KR Er SRRl ES 18 (33,129) (27,243)
Adjustments for: AT SBEELAZ
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERRETE
equipment 14 1,268 432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 14 10,806 6,082
Fair value loss on investment properties WEME 7 N FEEE 15 4,700 2,800
Fair value loss on financial assets at BAFEF ABE TS
fair value through profit or loss BEZANFEESE 11,560 11,410
Bank interest income HRITH S WA (2,512) (1,987)
Dividend income from listed investments @ iR E&E 7 KB WA (3,166) (3,237)
Finance costs BB A 10,814 5,570
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BER
equipment 2 W (7,462)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHBARZEE 32(b) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERSSE 14(c) 1,993
Operating profit/(loss) before working MirEEESEEF 2
capital changes mEER(ER) 2,749 (11,642)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERL, () 67 (11)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at R ATV EE ABz=H
fair value through profit or loss BB E (), R (3,718) 95
Increase in other receivables, deposits and E i fEU RS « 188 &
prepayments FEfT FRIE L N (2,129) (2,694)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, BEREMNER EMER
other payables and accruals AR & T 5RIE
CRA) /10 (1,861) 2,603
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities & #9& && i, CFid) 54 (16)

Net cash used in operating activities AR R TFER 2 )78 (4,838) (11,665)
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2023
—g-=

HK$’000
BT

(1,991)

103,281

378
(79,488)

(11,917)
(918)
(9,896)

(101,841)

(3,398)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -« % & Bl & i & &
for the year ended 31 December 2023 * BZ—FE_-=F1+=-H=1+—HI F&F
Notes
B =E
Cash flows from investing activities REEXKELEZHEERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BELEE
equipment
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEWE - HEREZBEZ
and equipment FT{S 318
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary TE—RHHBARZ
P8 IE 32(b)
Proceeds from disposal of listed share HERAFEFABREZ
measured at FVOCI RS EIAE
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BEMIRITER
deposits B (1)
Bank interest received BUWERTTF A
Dividend received from listed investments 2K B EHHEZKE
Acquisition of intangible assets WIBER &
Net cash generated from investing KEXBATRHE L FE
activities
Cash flows from financing activities BEEKELCRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEFBREIE 35
Increase in amounts due to shareholders — JE{ A% 58 5% 1B 42 A0
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE 35
Repayment of principle portion of the lease EEHEEEASHH
liabilities 35
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEARENAE 35
Loan interest paid BERNERFE 35
Net cash used in financing activities BERTETFER T FEE
Net decrease in cash and cash ReERBEESEEY
equivalents RO FRE
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BZzE&E
1 January HeZEEY

15,088

Cash and cash equivalents at

R+=A=+t—BH2

31 December HeRBRESEEY
Analysis of the balances of cashand R&RBELZEY>
cash equivalents EeRD
Cash and bank balances as stated in RERE MR EKTIER 2
consolidated statement of financial Re RIRITRE

position

2022
e

—_<——

HK$’000
BETIT

(434)

8,349

(5,259)
1,671
3,237

(2,100)

5,464

10,000
(2,892)

(7,845)
(377)
(5,193)

(6,307)

(12,508)

27,596

15,088

15,088



AL (RE) ARAF - “F - =AFEH

A5 G BB R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2023 « #Z —E_— =41 _—H=+—HIFFZ

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company's registered office is at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is at Unit 903, 9th Floor, Capital Centre, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 32. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as
“the Group” hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000") except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to
166 have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by the
directors on 27 March 2024.

traEE(EE)BRAG(ARFA])
TREREAMKY A—HERRE
RAaE EROREEBERFSE
BRAB([BERZAT]) ERET - ARF]
2 7 9% = B i ) Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda *+ HEXZ2& B AH B E
FETITE1515RE AR FLIEINSE ©

ARBETEREREZERER - K
BRARZEBEBFBHRNMESI2 -
ARAREME AR XGRS [ A
£E]-

RAEMBHRRIARRBZEERE
(BB 2 - R EEHAI - A
BEREAMNBRAAZREOT (A
BTl e

HNRFECLIE166 B 2R AT BIHRERTY
BEaEetMag([F8esa
BB ZEEVBEREENEE
MERE 2R D) (L SEBeEEREE
B RE R - BB ER (BB
FEEA D RZREB)RE - REMBH
RIMBIEEB R AHEN K AT 5
ITRAIZEAEERE

HE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—81LtF
EZEeaUBHRERIIRN_E_NFE=
AZ++HBAESHEREETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2023

(a)

HE—T—=—F+=-FA=+—HIFE

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are
effective for the Group’s financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 January 2023:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Except as disclosed below, the adoption of the above
new and amendments to HKFRSs that are effective for
the current reporting period did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

A5 W5 ik 3R O EE

7]

(a)

BRAFE SIER] BRI
BREEA-R-FB-_=F—
B—B&EX

RAEE  AEEEBHREH
T HRBEGFTMRGEMZ
TR - BE Rk BY
AEER-_ZF_=F—H—H
FineFEBHEZ MR RE
LogE

BRGHENSIRZET  HRRHORE
REAUBERE RN

LH0%

BEGHEASOR LT EitfiHcE

EAGENEONIET  RE-RAELH

AERRERR
HEEHR
BREHENR2NLET  BRBENE-
XHE-ERRA

BAUBASRAZTE  RRAD

BRI EES R LR
AFRE B AR AT &1
FIRAMBRELERERNEE
BTSRRI I\ E AR L -



(a)

(b)

AL (SR ARAF

CR SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2023

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2023 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 require material accounting
policy information to be disclosed in financial
statements rather than significant accounting policies
and provide additional guidance in deciding which
accounting policies should be disclosed. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Group’s
disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items
in the Group’s financial statements.

New guidance on accounting for the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
issued by HKICPA

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment)
Ordinance 2022 (“the Amendment Ordinance”) was
enacted. The Amendment Ordinance abolishes the
use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory contributions under the mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to offset severance
payment (“SP”) and long service payments (“LSP”)
(“the Abolition”). Subsequently, the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR?”)
announced that the Abolition will take effect on 1 May
2025 (the “Transition Date”).

(a)

(b)

HE T —=—F+=-HA=+—HIFE

RAFETREIETERU B
HEA-R-IB-=F—
A—BER(E)
BREHEE1R BT
REBUBREENEKER
EENETBRNIKE
BRI EAFEIR ZBITER
REARUBREATBEEEES
ABEREM  MIERBBAGS
HSR - WHRERBTHRENS
TR iR AR IMIES] -
BEMBRELENEHREE2
e ETREEEHSERR
SRR E 2 T AR MRS -

ZEEIHASRE G ERD
BREELTE  BHUAKEY
BHRERANEMIER ZFE -
BRKZINUELE -

EESHMAEREVEESR
BMESHER R S
Hlzas A AR HFIES

RZZEZZF A (=Z2==
FlRERRRETEEN (EiH%
HE) (B ET) B ) (TS RT 16451 1)
BB o B FTIEBIEUE M 54
MrEe([BEe)EEAEST
MEFc RE R EIHENRE
(IEg8 ) rEERE2([E
HERBe]) 22 H(TBER
BEl) o Bt BARRITERE
(IEBERITHE]BRFEE
o BCELHERRN S _AF
FA—B(&EBHAEMS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2023

(b)

HE—T—=—F+=-FA=+—HIFE

New guidance on accounting for the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
issued by HKICPA (Continued)

The following key changes will take effect since the
Transition Date:

- Accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions cannot be used to
offset the LSP/SP in respect of the employment
period after the Transition Date.

- The pre-transition LSP/SP is calculated using
the last month’s salary immediately preceding
the Transition Date, instead of using the salary of
employment termination date.

Due to the complexities of the accounting for the
offsetting of employer’s MPF contributions and its
LSP obligation and hence the impact arising from
the Abolition, in July 2023 the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition of the
MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” (the
“Guidance”) to provide guidance to account for the
offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s LSP liability
before the expected offsetting under the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism is considered immaterial for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, and the
application of the Guidance has no material effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

G 0 B 9 WY 3R

7]

(b)

BRSO SREUEEE
RS R A IR S
Hzast AR ES
(&)

AT EEZEHHKEBE RS
R

- RBEXRFIMERESHRX
PRELEMRFTHER A
FEREREE B RHK
XEHE 2 RHPRG
&/EHE -

- BEMZEHRYK
&/ EHBARERE
BHA&&—EAMH
TEPE - MILIFAKIE
XREAZFHEIE -

mMRNEHEETRESHRA R
HEBRGSETULHLE
ENFEZEFRERER
MoBAEBGABMLAER_-F
—=HE L RABM(ERIURRTE
TEEMRESEHEEHNS
SR ZIES ) - RIEHEE
il Ko B %2 BE 9 & 71 Ba 2 2 it
3l e

EERE AEEIBEARES
R HA AR 7% & 4K S5 4 51 78 HA A
BEREMNERHRSSETRE
E-E-—ER-_TE-_=F
+-A=+—HUIFEBFTE
Z . BHERAZESISASEED
A MBRRWESATE -



(c)

AL (SR ARAF

CR SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2023

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following interpretation or amendment to HKFRSs,
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendment”)!
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)!

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liabilities in a Sale and

Leaseback’

HK Interpretation 5
(Revised)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

The directors anticipate that all of the relevant
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after
the effective date of the pronouncement. The directors
are currently assessing the possible effect of these
interpretation and amendments on the Group’s results
and financial position in the first year of application.
The directors consider that those interpretation and
amendments to HKFRS that have been issued but are
not yet effective are unlikely to have material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position upon
application.

(c)

HE T —=—F+=-HA=+—HIFE

B R B R £ A 7T AR
CHES: 3RS
UTEREHBRELEANRE
S AE ] AJ BE SRR E B 15 Rk
BR - HEBEMERER - A
REREEIRFRR

BREHENEIR,  BEAEARDY
i FhE(-2-%%
BETAR])
EROHENS IR, WRZROETDAR
3] ([z3zzfF
faTR))
BEREET(ABT) HBRRNZ5-
BRAHEEEER
ERESNERER
opgel
EAUBRLEAE 6T SHEENAERR
B3]

1 RZZEZWE-—R—Hsiz#&
08 B 67 2 HA R AE

E=FHHMARBIMEERS
RAKBR A EREREH
BREESEMNSFBERS R
e EFERIEHAEZFTRER
EINERBEFHAEEER
RHBRANECEZE - BEF
RARZEEEMERERNE
B RE LR 2 2B RIER]
TRAGEREARHRNEED
RKENPHIRREREATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2023 « EZE - E - =#+_-H=+—HIFZF

The accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$28,900,000.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$80,842,000. Out of which there were shareholders
loan of HK$15,378,000 without fixed term of repayment
(Note 25), while the Group maintained the cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$11,690,000.

&5 G MBS R B R

REZERAMBERRSAEAZE
AAERBLR T - B R B HAESN
ZEBRRCRAAE2IFEERRMA -

31 mMREERFHECERR

BRREMERETEBIAN
REFEIIRIN ZEHEATTH
BERTIBRBELRAEREL
ERAEEERN TXEFER
ZEfA

HE-_Z-_=F+=-A=+—
HIEFE  ZKXEBBBENAE
7 % 28,000,000 T © BN = F
—=F+-A=+—8 K&
ErnaERHRsEELNS
¥ 80,842,000 7T ° H & B %
15,378,000 70 2 ¥ R & 70 &
BT E AR (FYsE25) » A
SERNES RBITEHEZFR
#975%11,690,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2023 « #Z —E_— =%+ _—H=+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation and going concern 31 HREERFELERR
assumption (Continued) (%)

Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial BEFA LR - 16 K
statements have been prepared a going concern basis MERNDBFECERERE
as the directors considered that the Group will have FRAREEEZEAAEEG#H
sufficient financial resources to meet in full its working ERHTBERTEREAER
capital requirements and financial obligations during WMERERRTZBEARNZE
the next twelve months after the reporting period. The EELERERPBEEE B
events that have been considered include the following: BHEIEEIE

—ZRRE BRI E A

(i) A shareholder has confirmed to provide an (i)

(i)

(i)

undertaking to the Group not to recall the
shareholder loan until the Group has the ability to

repay,

The Group has obtained the waiver from its
banker in relation the breach of loan covenant for
the bank borrowings in March 2024;

The Group has agreed with its banker in March
2024 for the bank facilities of approximately
HK$226,482,000 that are continued in valid; and

The Group would consider disposing of certain
investment properties to provide further funding
when the liquidity needs arise.

(i

(ii)

SERHEAFERSEHE
B HNEEEBA TS
ZREEBRRER

AEEER-_Z_MF
ZARERRBRITEED
ERTmESRITHAR

AEFBER T _ME
ZRBERITHE - B
#006,482,0007C IR 1T
MEBSEEEN &

AEBEREREHE
EHEKXBEBHESET
REMENE —TRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 it & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2023 « EZE - E - =#+_-H=+—HIFZF

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3.2 #HmEHEH%E

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets, and liabilities of the subsidiary.

The results of subsidiaries disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate.

ZEGRAMBREBEARRQA
MEKB A E (R THE3.3)
ZHBHE - EEARRMEZ
RGMEHRARETR R F NG
BUR A RRF BB -
BRIEXGREBEZEEZR
EFER - BRAIREREBITY
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3.3

3.4

AL (SR ARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2023

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.
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3.5 Foreign currency 3.5 HpE&

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the end of the reporting period retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or
at the average exchange rates for the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.
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for the year ended 31 December 2023

3.6 Revenue and other income recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sales of goods or the provision of
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. In
determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as
an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the
products or services before they are transferred to the
customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from the products or services.

Revenue is recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract, control of the
goods or service of the Group may be transferred over
time or at a point in time.

3.6

HE T —=—F+=-HA=+—HIFE

28 R H A WA TERR
RAKEREEETHERM
KEERBAATZBMAERE
BmoE R

EFEN W
AEBRAPREXFHETA -
RERHERNE  NEEALAS
BMRESERZEAINEA
B - ANEEEEBE MRS
RERETEPAELEGEE
HlHE - EHEEAREERE
REmMARH REE R
FZ2BRBRNIRABES ©

Yot 12 R BR 7K 5 [ TB B A #E B
RBPEmIMGERNKESR
B(MERRRE=TEBNE
#) - EaFE s R H
HEBREEPRBR - WaE T
BRBERIEMHER @ A
REMBRERZB S I

& B B8 3l AR S B 12 A
ARERERRNE —HHEE
BURTA & KIRO 63K



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 it & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2023 « EZE - E - =#+_-H=+—HIFZF

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control of the hair styling services and hospitality
services is transferred over time when the Group’s
performance provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the customer. If
control of the services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the product sales under hair
styling services from the Group.

Further details of the Group’s recognition policies for
revenue and other income are as follows:

(a) Revenue from rendering of hair styling services
and hospitality services is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered and transferred
over time. There is only one performance
obligation. In general, there is no credit term
offered to the customers which is consistent with
market practice.

(b) Rental income under leases arrangements is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

3.6 Revenue and other income recognition 3.6 WamkHMKAER(E)

EFEMWE (&)

fidf 2 5 [R) B W 1) Ko FE AN 52 [
EBRHUENAAN S - AR
BT A BB B R R A R 75 B 12
RAREREER - HREOIE
HEREREER  AEERE
EESHHBE cBEHNER
HHE R ©

WARECREAEEERR
SRS T QS E B s
2 RIS -

BRAAREEN S REBEA
HERBR E—HFBENT

@ REERRFTRBAR
B IR R R 2 W s
£ 12 AE BE AR %5 M AR A
AR 755 [ By F] 7 240 1 48 %5
RHER -2 —HED
BEff - —RME @ LE
MEFPRMHEEH - Ut
EMSEN -2 -

() HELTHAETZHEHZNK
ARMEBEEBARE R
B o



for the year ended 31 December 2023

3.6 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(c)

Revenue from product sales under hair styling
services is recognised when the customers
take possession of the products and title has
been passed. There is only one performance
obligation and no credit term offered to the
customers in consistent with the market
practice.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate on (i) the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount less loss allowance for credit-impaired
financial assets; or (ii) the gross carrying amount
for non-credit-impaired financial assets. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the
gross carrying amount of the financial assets.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

HE—T—=—F+=-FA=+—HIFE

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The assets' residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each of the reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Leasehold land and
buildings

Over the shorter of remaining
lease term or estimated
useful life

Right-of-use for other Over the shorter of remaining
properties leased lease term or estimated

useful life

Leasehold 10 - 33':%
improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 20 — 33':%

office equipment

Leased assets and assets held under finance leases are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (See note 3.10).

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of the reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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for the year ended 31 December 2023

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets and the Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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3.11 Leases

(a)

Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liability. The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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for the year ended 31 December 2023

3.11 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group presents lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.11 Leases (Continued) 3.11 #HE(E)
(b) Accounting as a lessor (b) fEREBAZESTERE
The Group has leased out its investment AEBEMZEEPH
properties to a number of tenants. Rental income MEREWE - KEL
from operating leases is recognised in profit or LHEENE S W ARE

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

3.12 Financial Instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue.

Debt instruments
There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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for the year ended 31 December 2023

3.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at
FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”),
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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3.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
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for the year ended 31 December 2023

3.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the end of the reporting period: and
(i) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

For debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.
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3.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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3.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)
(c) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as
financial liabilities at amortised cost, which
including trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amount due to non-controlling
interest, lease liabilities and bank borrowings.
The Group’s financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

3.13 Accounting for income taxes
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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3.13 FiEBzastEE (H&)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.
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3.13 FiEBzastEE (H)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the average rates that are expected
to apply to the taxable profit or tax loss of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse. The determination of the average tax rates
requires an estimation of (i) when the existing temporary
differences will reverse and (ii) the amount of taxable
income in those years. The estimate of future taxable
income includes (i) income or loss excluding reversals
of temporary differences; and (ii) reversals of existing
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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3.14

3.15

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term

employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.
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3.16 Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

Share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each of
the reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.
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3.17

3.18

HE—T—=—F+=-FA=+—HIFE

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at
the end of each of the reporting period and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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3.19 Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(i)

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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3.19 Related parties
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financing plan assessed as detailed in note 3.1 to these
consolidated financial statements. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this assumption
is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period
are as below:

(@) Estimated fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment
properties were revalued at the end of the reporting
period by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgment, the
Group considers latest completed transactions and
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
of the reporting period.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, refer to note 15.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) st A EEEEZ2ETERIR(E)
(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) W% - BERRE2GET

equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment is estimated using the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposals and its-
value-in-use. If the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The determination
of recoverable amount based on value-in-use
calculation incorporates a number of key estimates
and assumptions about future events and therefore,
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making these key estimates
and judgments, the directors take into consideration
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period
and appropriate market and discount rates. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions entered into by the
Group. Future changes in the events and conditions
underlying the estimates and judgements would affect
the estimation of recoverable amounts and result in
adjustments to their carrying amounts.

For more detailed information in relation to impairment
of property, plant and equipment, refer to note 14.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5.

Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities,

is recognised during the year as follows:

Revenue

Rendering of hair styling services and
related product sales

Securities investments

Hospitality services income

Gross rental income from investment
properties

Interest income from money lending

Other income

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments
classified as financial assets at FVOCI

Exchange gain

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Government subsidies (Note)

Sundry income

S 5 i R B SR

g 3 B AR A
REBFEEBRERNER 2N
T
2023 2022
—_E-= —ZE-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
g
IRMER LA RS R AEE
Emtse 15,085
BHIEE 3,018
PR JE K SR BRFSA 14,437
REREMHE 2B BB
3,821
REEEZHERA 20
36,381
Hng A
RITH BUA 1,087
REBRAFEFAEMEZE
WAD TR BT HEED
EMREZREBBA 273
Rl -
HEME - BER
B W 7,462
BT v b (5T 2,266
FETEA 1,450
13,438

Note:

In 2022, among the government subsidies, an amount of HK$911,000
was government grants obtained from the Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the
Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses,
and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The Group has complied with the requirements
set out in the ESS for the year ended 31 December 2022.

M R-ZT_—F BABUBTHNEE
911,0007T A& B4 RI1TBUR BT E 7 &
EeBETRBEN B[RS A
EREEXRHEEFHFS MM - RER
REHE  AEECABFERAZSHY
EAFEHAY  TEREREATSE
BEBABRLERTERKFUT - K&
ER#zZ—_FT-_—F+-A=+—HI
FEDETRMET S FET ZHE ©
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The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and review of these components’
performance. The business components in the internal
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating
decision makers are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following six operating segments:

Hair styling — Provision of hair styling and related
services and product sales in
Hong Kong

Money lending — Provision of commercial and

personal loans in Hong Kong

Property investments Investing in commercial and
residential properties for rental
income and for potential capital
appreciation in both Macau and

Hong Kong
Securities investments — Investing in listed equity securities
in Hong Kong and equity-linked

investments in Hong Kong

Hospitality services

Provision of hospitality services in
Hong Kong

Property project — Provision of property related
management project management service

&5 G MBS R B R

RETHEXRTAEEATESTUH
BEREANEEEHARIL D 2ER
DEA KRR ZF D RIRZ A B
BER  ARBEEHEMNELE DAL
WEDBEN - AHFE2ERTHITES
(EBLBERRE) CERBAEKE DD
REASEIEZEMRRBREE -
REBBR D RBATNELEDED -

ERHRT - ERERHEELRRME
BREARERHE

(3 - ERERHEARRK
MAER

NERE - RAWRAMREBZ
BEREENELER
BEUARBEER
(e

BHRRE - REABBLWERAESZR
BEBREHBRE

BRERFE — ERBRHKER
R TR AR TS

WEEE - REMEEBER
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 0.

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Segment revenue

72 BP Uk

2023

—— =

— ==

HK$’000
BET T

Hair styling SERRET 15,832
Money lending BE 81
Property investments YR A 2,796
Securities investments BERAE 2,935
Hospitality services RIS B R R 31,393

Property project management #) %18 B & 12 -

Unallocated income ROBUWA

Exchange gain/(loss), net BE R W (B18)F8

Corporate staff costs RNAEIB I

Other corporate and EMRARRADERL
unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax M ETIS TR RS 18

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administrative
costs. Segment results excluded certain bank interest income,
dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI and net
exchange gain/loss which arise from assets that are managed
on a group basis. Segment results also excluded corporate
staff costs and other corporate and unallocated expenses.
This is the measure reported to the executive directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

oy B R (4

2 5B Wk 2 AR
REBBAZES BB D2 WS RE
B2 AT

Segment results
DEBEE

2023
—— =

—ire==

HK$’000
BETT

2022
e

—=

HK$’000

2022

HK$’000
BT IT

(1,275) )

20 1 )

3,821 (10,539) (7,076)

3,018 (8,625) (8,391)
14,437 3,540 3,721

- 8 (75)

36,381

(16,890)

3,256
992
(6,549)

(13,938)

(33,129)

LB 2R WBEREINEEL Z

Ygs o

DEEBEES D BEM BN, FE
EZBE - WESRPRITHERAE -
DHMEBETBERREAAEEEEZE
EELZETRITNBEA - BRF
Bt AEtEZ2HABANTHEEZR
BUWARER e BEFE - D
XENMTREAREIRAREMA
AARAKRDERX - WHRAMTES
E®RHE - BEDEEIRIA NG
DEBRIR
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Zulb&R(48)

Segment assets and liabilities PHMEEREE
2023 2022
—E== T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Hair styling EAVEET 4,895 10,129
Money lending BE 2,255 2,157
Property investments MEKLE 119,555 133,151
Securities investments BEKE 52,233 58,953
Hospitality services IR JE K SR AR 7S 226,861 219,354
Property project management MEREEE 18 19
Total segment assets DEBE EMRTE 405,817 423,763
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEEE 722 449
Financial assets at FVOCI EBEAFEFAEMEEEAZ
MBEE 807 5,007
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIBITHER - 86,248
Short-term bank deposits RERERITIE R 4,000 3,000
Other corporate and unallocated assets ~ EM AT RADEE 6,401 12,258
Consolidated total assets AEHEERT 417,747 530,725
Segment liabilities PHEE
Hair styling ERIRE 8,860
Money lending B8 10
Property investments YERE 14,333
Hospitality services R JE K SR AR 7S 34,120
Property project management MEIEEER 30
Total segment liabilities DEPBEERE 57,506 57,353
Deferred tax liabilities ELRIEAE 2,737 6,693
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FEMR) 87,895 164,819
Other corporate and unallocated liabilities Hit AT RARDRE E 17,135 20,932

Consolidated total liabilities eHaEes 165,273 249,797
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

= all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than financial assets at FVOCI, pledged bank deposits
and short-term bank deposits which are managed
on group basis and other corporate and unallocated
assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax liabilities and certain bank borrowings
which are managed on group basis, and other
corporate and unallocated liabilities.

Other segment information

Fair value loss on

0.

Interest income investment properties Finance costs
HEYEY
HISKA AVEER HERE

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
TECCE el C2CCF b CECCE i
HKS'000 [GSYUOM HKS'000 QRGTSVUUN HK$'000 JREIN
iael AT EELEeM AT WSS EETR
Hair styling SRS 1 - 167
Money Lending Eg - - _

Properly investments ~ 1£I%E
Hospitalty services HERSERE

W 700 EECEN)

A (4700 )] 1,485
Unallocated R 1985 - 4,085
Total s 1,987 (4,700) (2,800 5510

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an impairment
loss on right-of-use assets amounted to HK$1,339,000
(2022: HK$1,264,000) and HK$169,000 (2022: HK$729,000)
were recognised for the segment of hair styling, segments
of securities investment and property project management
respectively (note 14(c)).

o0 R E R ()
THEEREREE)
BERSHERRHRE DR

=

D

‘—UF
|

||k

- FBREEASEENZHRDE
(BRAFEFAEME2EEAZ
MBEE RESELEEEZ
EERMBITERREHRRTE
RAREM AR RRDEEE
BRSN) ¢+ R

- FARREHIEEFNEZHD B
(REEHBABERIRESEELEE
BZETRITEEREM AT
BARDEABRIN)

Hith 75 ZBE ¥
Loss on disposal of  Additions to specified
a subsidiary (note 32(b))  non-current assets Depreciation
HE-BHEAR
Fifa (&£32(0)) EEFRDEEZAE il

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

TECCE bl CECCE bl CECCF e
HKS'000 ERGLEHVUN HKS'000 MRGLEHONM HKS'000 ERGIEHION
el EETT EECEVE EETT WAVl AT

= o4 2492
= = 167
= 2,00 2,142
= 2,254 4,801
= 2,33 1713
= 4,586 6,014

BE_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HItF
& (A EREEEE1,339,000
T(ZZT - —4F : ##1,264,0007T)

N 169,000 c( ZE — —F + B
729,0007T) 73 B B2 BURR 5T 3 BB A K 7B
HFBMYEBR BIE D SRER (M
14(c)) °
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0.

A5 6 B R B AR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Zr#B&H (48)
Geographical information HEER
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets EEIIRDEE(ATBEMBEEY
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on FERBEE)2MRUEDIREEEE
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location BAEMNESD - REZHEMET)
of customers is based on the location at which the services BREBEEREHBRHE XN EmNE2LE S
were provided or the goods were delivered. S
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the T RIEERRBEE CEMERK
specified non-current assets and revenue from external B ERzREz o TRENE
customers, analysed by the geographical location. D) °
Specified Revenue from
non-current assets external customers
EEFRBDEE REMBEF 2 W=

Hong Kong (place of domicile) % & (FTTEHE) 263,439
80,170

343,609 356,834 53,037

Macau ST

Information about a major customer

None of the customers individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

2023
—EC-=HF
HK$’000
BT T

2022 2023 2022

TEF el — T —

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T

51,441
82,324 1,596

EHE—BEXEEFNER
REBEEZZT-_—"FR-_ZF-__F+=
A=+—BLFE  BEENESL
NEB WS HIZE10% A L -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 0.

Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers
is disaggregated by operating segments and timing of revenue
recognition. Revenue from other sources are analysed in the
table.

SRR (80)

gk g g
TRZREED B RBARERERE D
BEFAHZEA - KA HMAR 2
SAETRETOMN

2023 2022
—E-= —ZE-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BEETIT

Revenue from contracts with EEE#H WS
customers
Timing of revenue recognition — Over time Y 2z fE 57 b5 [B] — & B f2]
Hair styling services SR ET AR 14,440
Hospitality services R JE K SR AR 7S 14,437
Timing of revenue recognition ez ERR I BT
- At a point in time —RE—b52;
Product sales under hair styling services 5Bz RIEE v ERNE 645
Revenue from other sources R EHAMRFEZ WS
Rental income AU A 3,821
Interest income from money lending BEEFSUWA 20
Securities investments BHEE 3,018
36,381
FINANCE COSTS 7. RBUERAR
2023 2022
—E—-= T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Interest charges on bank loans IRITERMBMAX 9,896 5,193
Interest charges on lease liabilities HEaEMNEMAx
(note 34(a)) (F5E34(a)) 918 377

5,570
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8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

HK$°000
BET T

Loss before income tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation:

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets:

— Leasehold land and buildings
(owned assets)

— Other properties leased for own use
(under lease arrangement)

Exchange (gain)/loss, net

Employee benefit expenses
(including Directors’ emoluments)
(note 11)

Rentals received/receivable from
investment properties less direct
outgoings of HK$356,000
(2022: HK$458,000)

Short-term leases expenses

BTSRRI B RN,
(FGFA) T 3R B &SI

1% E AR &

e
L E Y
FREEE
—HETHRETF

(BEBEE)
—HAENHEAEMmE
(BEZHT)

&5 (W), B8 558

EERAIFEZ
(BIEESHM)
(PfFsE11)

B RIS EMERSRE
B 8 #356,0007T
(ZEB——F:
7B 458,0007T)

EHAERY

(2,440)
456

2022
—=E-=
HK$'000

P T IT

724

432

1,189

4,893

7,735

22,725

(3,363)
456
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FIF S8 (H5 %) B 52

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T ST IT

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE ).
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERTR I8 — B A FEH
Deferred tax (note 28) IEFERIA (FI5E28)

(4,229) 920

(4,229) 920

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, which is
calculated at tax rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the financial
statements as the Group did not derive any estimated
assessable profits in Hong Kong for the current and prior
years.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2022: 12%).

AEBAHREEHEH  HERR
% 7 7 L B FE SR FI16.5% B %
HE -

HRAEEAFERBEFRELER
BFRELEMAMGEAERTEN - I
BRPBRIELEENSHER -

BRI ISR B AR - 7RI T
ks e 2 BB A R AR 12% (=
T F 0 12%) 2B EBURRPIF S
o
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9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. TSR (&) BE S (48)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation between income tax credit/expense and MERMERAENEHE® X
accounting loss at applicable tax rate is as follows: HeEE Z BHHERNT -
2023 2022
—=E_= —E -
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT ST T
Loss before income tax B Er1S BRI ES 18 (33,129) (27,243)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% BEBEEHE16.5%(=ZF
(2022: 16.5%) in Hong Kong T 1 16.5%)FTEHEAE (5,466) (4,495)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries fEE M FHER R KL 7 B
operating in other jurisdictions RNEZ T EAHELE 299 232
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 Mg & 2,620 2,812
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARTWAZ HIETE (1,133) (2,456)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised as RIER SEERBEE 2
deferred tax assets MIEEBEZRETE 4,461 4,183
Tax effect of other temporary differences FREREMEREF =2
not recognised MR e (396) (186)
Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax REBIAER Z ELERIE
assets previously not recognised BEZHBEE (4,614) -

Income tax (credit)/expense TS R) X (4,229) 90
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LOSS PER SHARE 10. H&RkEE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of RARHB ABNEREREETR
the Company is based on the following data: BATEEE
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year KEEEE
Loss attributable to owners of the Company XA B)#EA A JE(L &R (28,736) (27,266)
‘000
TFhx
Number of ordinary shares ZERRE
Weighted average number of ordinary METEEREANSENE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating A A AN S 15 8
basic loss per share 326,077 326,077
For the purposes of calculating diluted loss per share for the A EHE T _=FRrR-ZE_Z
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no adjustment has +_A=+—"HILFEEREBEEE
been made as the exercise of the outstanding share options B MEELAR  BATERTE

has an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.
2 o

BEESHEREANBERARBEY
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11.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

11.

A5 6 B R B AR

)

i S A8 B 5C

Salaries, allowances and staff benefits
Commission
Retirement benefit costs (note 12)

me

e RMRETIEMN

BARBHRRA (HEE12)

2023 2022
—E_=F —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T IT
22,952 21,861
445 319
584 545
23,981 22,725

12. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions for the directors, amounted to HK$584,000
(2022: HK$545,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2022: nil).

12.

1B AR A F
REFERGIEREEAINEERM
Mz BFIMERBEEIG(E=F
ZETF+_A-BRER) A5E
2B EERAI XA EERRGIME
ATESFE([BRERE])  AHE
BEREEFEHHER - RIEBES
g EEIRHREESBEHANEERM
B A 5% A AT B - HERE A
HEABRALRZ AR - T AHABKA
FRE-Z-OFA-BEZEH
78 25,000 7T 15 % # #30,0007T ° 58
BEat BRI ENE R -

AEBZABSTERIAE(BIEX
NEEZ #5K) BEKS84,000L (==
T4 B#E545,0007T) ERFERE
RERAEZ - BEFMEHRKTERLD
AEEZRBHEIKFE(ZE=Z

®) o



13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -« %5 & Bt %5 # 3 Kt 5

for the year ended 31 December 2023 * #ZE —E - =4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and
payable to the directors are as follows:

Fees
we
HK$°000
BETT

WAL (RED) ARAF - —F - =FER

LR B ST AE T UN

Sl
(a) EEMe

ENEENEEZMEERN

I

Retirement
benefit costs
RABARE
HK$°000
BETT

Salaries and
allowances
HEeRER
HK$°000
BETT

Total
Bt
HK$’000
BET T

Year ended 31 December BE2-_Z2-=%+-H8
2023 Zt—BLEFE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel YRR ELE
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syvia SR+
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania k&% +
Independent Non-Executive BEIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAGEE
Mr. Lau Pui Wing EES S
Ms. Ho Ting Mei BESEreen
Mr. Wu Bin Quan RMEEE
Year ended 31 December BZ-_Z2-_&+=H8
2022 =t—BLEE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel ZRALE 240 3,720 12 3,972
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia LRmLLT 600 3,024 30 3,654
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania KBAE4L+ - 3,139 58 3,197
Independent Non-Executive BVFHTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit AL 60 - - 60
Mr. Lau Pui Wing MR LE 60 - - 60
Ms. Ho Ting Mei ABERL 60 - - 60
Mr. Wu Bin Quan RuEEEE 12 - - 12
1,032 9,883 100 11,015
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include three (2022: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note (a) above and the emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid individual
are as follows:

SV 5 i R B EE

13. FEFIE X T4 B= A
+ (%)

(a)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

LY RO

¥ o RRREAER

EEMe(E)
BEZFT-=fFfk=-FT=-_=
+ZA=+—HULFE  UE
EEHELXRENEEHSE -

e o) v
+-A=+t—BILEE X£&
B kE TS FERE
EEBMAREB S IALRE
B %E  SEABR

=)
g o

TEBRSHFMAL
BT -_=F+-_/A=+—
ALFE  AEEREZEH
MALBRE=2(—2-—
=R)EF AMEEHRNLEX
MisE@ 2z DR B R ES
BRTWME(ZEZZF : ML)

EEFMALTZBMewnT ¢
2023 2022
—=E_-= —=E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BRI
2,647
82

2,729
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13. FFHME N H A RS A
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS + (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) IEEESHFMAL(E)
The emoluments of this remaining two (2022: two) BTITMEZ(ZE_—_F : W4%)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands: EEFMATZBHMENTFUT
EENE
Number of individuals
A
2022
T —F
Emolument bands i <& %6 &
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z %% %1,000,0007T -

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 75 #1,000,001 T2
75 ¥1,500,0007T
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,001 TE
7 #2,000,0007T
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 * BZ—FE_—=F+=-H=1+—HI F&F

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. ¥ - BUS Mt

Right-of-use assets

fEREeE

Under lease
Owned assets arrangement

BREE  REZHT

Other Furniture,
Leasehold properties fixtures and
landand  leasedfor  Leasehold office Motor
buildings ownuse improvements  equipment vehicle Total
B

BELH  HENHER B8 ER%E

RgF  ZRMNE 58 RMOERR hE L
HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 1000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
EETL BT R%Tn BT BT R%T

Year ended 31 December 2022 Bz-3-cf
TZR=T-ALEE

Opening net carmying amount BNERRE 220,598 5,050 194 604 - 206,446
Effect of lease modification REEINEE - 6,997 - - = 6,997
Additions E = 2,051 124 310 - 2,485
Disposal heE (887) - - - - (887)
Depreciation i (1,189) (4,899) (158) (274) = (6,514)
Impairment (note (c)) HEHC) - (1,999) - - - (1,999)
Closing net carrying amount BREMTE 218,522 7,12 160 640 - 226,534
At 31 December 2022 R-E_—F+-f=1-H

Cost s 202,59 30,491 2,185 4,569 936 261,343
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z:HTERGfE [4,070) (23.279) (2,59) 3,929) (936) (34,809)
Net carrying amount EmEE 218,522 1,212 160 640 - 226,534
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-E-cE

tZR=t-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount BOREFE 218,522 7,212 160 640 226,534
Effect of lease modification CEUHEE: - 6,083 - - 6,083
Additions KE - 6,183 330 1,661 8,174
Depreciation il (1,165) (9,641) (138) (1,130) (12,074)
[mpairment (note (c)) HE(KEe) - (1,508) - - (1,508)
Closing net carrying amount BREEFE 217,357 8,329 352 1,11 227,200
At 31 December 2023 RZB-zE+ZR=+-B

Cost i 202,592 42,7151 3,085 6,230 275,600
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z:HHERHE (5,285) (34,428) 2,733) (5,059) (48,391)

Net carrying amount FA3E 217,357 8,329 352 1,171 227,209
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)
Notes:
(@) The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

14.

W€ ~ WE S st (48)
B3E -

(@) ZEREEENBINERREERE

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with
remaining lease term of:

— Over 50 years
— Between 10 and 50 years

—EBiB50F
— 106 E50F R

Other properties leased for own use,

Hitbz

carried at depreciated cost

BINERAFIRREBATESRZ
TRE T RAB TR B R

BITERATIRZEEAEERZ

FEAINHOT -

2023 2022
—EBCo=F B F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T ok 3 e
213,595 214,596

3,762 3,926

8,329 7,212

225,686 225,734

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land and buildings with net carrying
amount of HK$213,595,000 (2022: HK$214,596,000) was pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in
note 27(c).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors reviewed the Group’s
property, plant and equipment to determine whether impairment
indications existed. When indicators of impairment were identified,
the directors assessed the recoverable amount of those assets.
For the purpose of impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, each of the operating segments as disclosed in note 6
or each individual hostel premise was identified as a separate cash-
generating unit (“CGU”). Corporate assets were allocated to each of
the CGU and included as part of the carrying amounts of the CGU for
comparing to their recoverable amounts. As at 31 December 2023,
impairment loss on right-of-use assets amounted to HK$1,508,000
(2022: HK$1,993,000) was recognised to profit or loss and the details
are explained below:

(b) RZTEZ=F+=-A=+—8 " EREF
E58%213,595,000C( —E = 4 :
7 214,596,000 7T ) K & + i R 4E
FEERARTFASENRITHEZE
R E—HRHBRRHE27(c) °

() RREHR  EEBHAEENYE -
BERSEBENETREFEREDR
REFIREDRE  ERTEZSEE
ZAREISEE - WE - BEREREZ
RWEFGEMES - N6 EENS &
BoBAETE—REMERZNATR
BeELEN([REELEMN]) - &
REEDHEZESRESELEMN - I
B SEAENERABEN—H -
DO BREAKREESE RZT=Z=F
+ZA=+—R ERAREAEREESE
1,508,000 (T - —F : B
1,993,00070) Rz P HER « FIEHRE
W
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HE—T—=—F+=-FA=+—HIFE

Notes: (Continued)
(Continued)

()

(i)

Hair styling business

The dampening economic activities and sluggish consumer
sentiment after the COVID-19 pandemic having a direct
impact to the recovery progress of markets in Hong Kong, the
recoverable amount of the Group’s hair salon of HK$2,628,000
(2022: HK$6,431,000) was less than the carrying amount
of HK$3,967,000 (2022: HK$7,695,000) included in other
properties leased for own use under right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment (including allocated
corporate assets) as of 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$1,339,000 (2022: HK$1,264,000) in
respect of property, plant and equipment was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The recoverable amount as of 31 December 2023 is
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which
comprise cash flow projections of this CGU prepared based
on the financial budgets approved by the directors. The
period covered by the financial budgets is 2 years. The key
assumptions used by the management in the value-in-use
calculations of the CGU include (i) sales growth rates ranged
from -9% to 9%; (i) gross profit margin is maintained at similar
level as have achieved during the current year; and (i) pre-tax
discount rate of 11%.

The recoverable amount as of 31 December 2022 was
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which
comprised cash flow projections of this CGU prepared based
on the financial budgets approved by the directors. The
period covered by the financial budgets was 3 years. The key
assumptions used by the management in the value-in-use
calculations of the CGU included (i) sales growth rates ranged
from 5% to 8%; (ii) gross profit margin is maintained at similar
level as have achieved during the year; and (iii) pre-tax discount
rate of 10.5%.

&5 G MBS R B R

MicE ()

()

(%)
(i)

=111

SRR TS
COVID-19 R MITHZ B & &K
BEHREXRNEEEEEY
EEMEMEREEERER
g8 NZTZ=+=A
=+—8 AEEEREZT
U B & %878 % 2,628,0007T (=
T —F : #%6,431,0007T)
BEREAEEERTHENH
BERZEMMERLMYE -
BEREEREEDEEEE
E) W BRE{E 5 % 3,967,0007T
—F - 4 7,695,000
L) At ME - BERR
& Rk 1B 5 18 78 5 1,339,000 7T
(ZZT = =4 : #111,264,000
TTERBE-ZT=_=F+=A
=+t RALEFEMREBER
NHER ©

R-T-_=F+=-A=+—H
WA E S EREERER
ATEmERE  REUBRESEL
BARBESHENMREEZE
FREMESRETEN - BIK
BERMRENHBARMSE - &
BERBeELEUZFERE
BEAEMAZEEZRERE ()
HEERENF-9%ZE9%; (i) E
MEREFRERFEEEHK
I R (i)BREIATAE R EA1% o

RZEZZF+=-A=+—H
WA ESEIEREAEER
AEET BELEREELR
MNEREEIAENTBEER
HENBRSREEE - BIETE
BRENHEA=F - BIEE
RREEEEMNFEREE
HAEANEERRZREONT
5% Z8%HIHEERE : (i)E
MEERFEFRERNHHEEK
oo R (i) 10.5% 9 BR B A BA ZR



for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes: (Continued)
(Continued)

()

(i

Securities investments and property project management
businesses

In view of the results from the segments of securities
investments and property project management, the
recoverable amounts of these segments were estimated to
be lower than their carrying amounts of HK$169,000 (2022:
HK$729,000) in aggregate included in other properties leased
for own use under right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment (including allocated corporate assets)
as of 31 December 2023. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$169,000 (2022: HK$729,000) in respect of property, plant
and equipment was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The recoverable amounts were determined based on value-
in-use calculations, which comprise cash flow projections of
each of these CGU prepared based on the financial budgets
approved by the directors. The period covered by the financial
budgets is 1 year (2022: 2 years). The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 11% (2022: 10.5%).
Other key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations of the
CGUs include budgeted revenue.

These assumptions were determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations in respect of
the market conditions as well as the economy and political
changes which have impact on the CGU results. In addition,
to mitigate the deviation of the projected financial performance
resulting from the uncertainties about future events, the
management has considered multiple scenarios in projecting
the revenue during the forecast period, each of which are
probability weighted. The pre-tax discount rate used reflects
the specific risks relate to the business and industry in which
this cash-generating units are engaged.

AL (SR ARAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CR SRR

5 BB R B RE

HE T —=—F+=-HA=+—HIFE

ficE ()

()

(%)
(ii)

EFRERYMFERBEEED

HRNBHFRERMEBEB TR
DEOEE - BAZREHBH
AEEEEERER T
=5+ -F=+—H®ET
BEA £ B 169,000 (= F
— % B ¥729,0007T) (5
AEREEENEMERAEMA
EMEREMME - BEKRFE
HREESELEEE)) - B
bt M BERREORE
E518/8%169,000t (=T ==
& B¥T729,0007T) EREE
—E-=Ff+=ZA=+—H1
FENGRAIBRRPHER -

A E & B REEAEER
BEMET RESHSELE
A IRIRE LA A E A
REMBSRETEN - BBE
BERRENSHEAE—F(Z2
ZZF WE) c EBARRER
EBRANBRBAMEERA11%
(ZZE=—% :10.5%) - 3tHE
EEBNZEREESEMB
ZEHMEEREOIEBEES -

ZEBRBROREBEBERTAMNR
EEERERSELBEURE
B ENTRIA R E R
AR TAEIMEE - b
AR BRI B R 2R 3= 1 B TR
EEMERM TP EEEZ
wmE - EEERENFENBNE
Mk ERHEZEEZRER - &%
SERERNBEHEMERRER
it PR 22 B 5% A B 3 e BR 7
ZReEEBUMIRERR
TEMNFERE
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

_.
Ul
S
!
N

Fair value AEE

At 1 January n—A—H
Disposal (note 32(b)) & F I8 (M13E32(b))
Net change in fair value* N EEE)FE"

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H

disclosed as “Fair value loss on investment properties” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using a fair value
model and are leased to third parties under leases to earn rental
income, further details of which are set out in note 34(b).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2023 and 2022 by RAVIA Global Appraisal Advisory Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties has
been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. All of the fair values of the
investment properties at the end of the reporting period are level 3
recurring fair value measurement, which uses significant unobservable
inputs in arriving at the fair values. There is no transfer between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current year or
in prior year.

Fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are determined using
direct comparison approach. Fair values are based on recent market
information about prices for comparable properties with significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

2023 2022
—E_=F —=E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T IT
128,200 131,000
(9,200) -
(4,700) (2,800)
114,300 128,200

REE2EBABRREERS [REMEZ
RFERE] -

FEBZBREAMERARIFEER TN
AERBREEEEETE= - UHR
HeRA AREE-—FTHBRARKE
34(b) °

REBZEENECH IR _TE=_=4F
kT ZF+-_A=+—BHEBIA
BRBEGEMEYRETELARNER
ARERBARMBZAERERELESH
REER

FEBEREWEZNTEAE B9
A-BATEER(ERRBEBUBRS
HRIF1BRATEAE) - RIREHK
FERENEZATERF=EBRFIE
RFEFE  AEAFERSEAEKR
TABEHARE - RAFEHLE—F
B E5-ERFE-EoMLESER T
EEANEHE=E -

RZEZ_=Z=FR=ZFT=_=_F+=A
S+-BRZATFEDNERERLEEE
TE o AFEENREIHABATLEYE
B zMHERABKRE  YHAEEY
¥R AAERERERFEE -
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Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

Properties

LUES

Residential properties

EEWHE

A retail shop

—REEE

A retail shop

—HEEE

Office premises

MREWE

Residential property

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparables would

Location
vE

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong

Macau

]

Level

B

for the year ended 31 December 2023

Valuation
technique

fEERN

Direct comparison
approach

BRILEOR

Direct comparison
approach

BERLLBVR

Direct comparison
approach

BERLEBE

Direct comparison
approach

BRI

Direct comparison
approach

BREBE

result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best use of the

investment properties, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2023, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$40,200,000 (2022: HK$43,000,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further

detailed in note 27(c).

ficE : ()

(d) (48)

CR SRR

5 BB R B RE

HE T —=—F+=-HA=+—HIFE

HEGABREZFEHIINT

Unobservable inputs

TARERABE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYEERRBEENRHE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

RYEERRBEENEHE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYEERRBEENEHE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYEERRSHIEN R HE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYEERRSEENRHE

Range of
unobservable inputs

TAREERABE 2 EE

-5% to 5%
(2022: -7.5% to 7.5%)
BSRESU(ZTEZ=F ¢
-7 5%ZE7.5%)

-45% to 0%
(2022: -50% to 0%)
AE%E0N(ZT ==
-50%ZE0%)

-10% to 2%
(2022: -2.5% to 25%)
0% E2%(ZF ==
-2.5%ZE25%)

-7% to 0%
(2022: -15% to 0%)
THREOR(ZE==
-15%Z%0%)

-10% to 5%
(2022: -5% to 10%)
0% ES%(ZE==
-5%ZE10%)

MAREMER AL BMEZ AR
HERMEZRSEERITRSEEN
FERmHBIE 2 ATE -

RFEDREREMEN RS RE KR
EREtE NREEEAGTEER

(e) R-B-_=F+-A=+—H " KE{E
#)/75%40,200,000TT(Z =24 : &
#43,000,0007C) 2 & TIREMEEIER
AEERFRRITERZER  FHE—
FHBREAHTE27(c) °
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -« %5 & B %5 # & Mff 5
for the year ended 31 December 2023 ¢ #Z —ZE - =4+ _-HA=+—HIF)Z
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. E|EEE
2023 2022
—EB-=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Trademarks, at cost EE - AT E 2,100 2,100
The trademarks together with the relevant property, plant and ZERHIREARYE  BEIRRE(E
equipment including right-of-use assets are included in the EEAEEE) D BREIIKE & REFR
CGU of hospitality services and subject to impairment at least BORESELEN  UERDTFT
annually. A -
The Group’s trademarks have finite lives but are renewable AEBHNEABEEREFH - AR
upon expiry at minimal costs. In the opinion of the directors, [EREUARERANERS - EERE
the Group would renew the trademarks continuously and has AEBARIFEEEDE - FAR
the ability to do so. There is no foreseeable limit to the period BB AAEREAR S RAFE
over which the trademarks are expected to generate net cash BE RN AT TE ROEAMR - Bt - IR
inflows for the Group. Therefore, the trademarks have been BREBTHEERFHL I #
considered to have an indefinite life and are not amortised o BEFETREIR - AEBEE
tested annually for impairment. The Group determined the BENRELFHNMEEHRNR SR
recoverable amount of the trademarks by its value in use. EEANFERAEETEETCEHIZMNA]
Calculation based on the cash flow projections covering a five- WEEHE - TEBRREFE11.8%NE
year period plus extrapolated period. Key assumptions include TRATARIR X - MAFHENTEHRS
a pre-tax discount rate of 11.8% and expected cash flows MEBTIEMINMRTELREMES -
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17 $B PR AR R T
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Z BB &
INCOME
2022
—E -
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, M&#B 2 FHRRAEE -
at fair value RAFE 5,007

Financial assets at FVOCI represents listed equity investments
in Hong Kong, which are held for long-term and are non-
trading in nature. Fair values of these listed equity investments
have been measured as described in note 37.1(v).

BAFEFARLMGLEZEEAZTBE
EERAKAABIEEHE 2NE
B EIRAKRE - ZF EHRAR
BZRNVEETFE  FEHNRME
37.1(v) °
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19.

20.
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 * #ZE —E - =4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

INVENTORIES 18.

HK$’000

BETT

Consumable stocks AATE

83

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to HK$697,000 (2022: HK$752,000).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

S 5 i R B SR

2022
—E-

HK$’000

ST IT

150

REE-_ZET-_=F+-_A=+—HIt
FEBABHI M ABERAZF
ERAABBEE97,000T (2T ==

£ 752 0007T)

A T A AR

2023
—E-=

HK$°000
BET T

Listed equity investments held for trading, #FH{EE&E 2 FHRAKRE -

at fair value bizg/NS -]

Financial assets at FVTPL represents listed equity investments
held for trading, at fair value. The fair value of the listed equity
investments have been measured as described in note 37.1(v).

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND  20.
PREPAYMENTS

o

it 2 BB E

2022
—EF-=

HK$°000

ST IT

58,940

BAVFEAABRS IV BEERR
AFEFEFFEEEZ LTRAR
B FRAREN R FED LM E

37 A(V)FTillsr = ©

HoA EWORK ~ 1 AT

%A

2023
—E-=

HK$°000
BET T

Other receivables HAth U BR 5K
Prepayments TERTRIE
Deposits e

Loan receivables FERE R

1,868

725
4,290
2,845

9,728

2022
—EF-=

HK$’000

ST IT

859
911
4,158
2,071

7,999

127
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 ¢ #Z —ZE - =4+ _-HA=+—HIF)Z

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and no fixed

term of repayment.

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

No bank deposits were pledged by the Group as at 31
December 2023. Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December
2022 were denominated in Renminbi with original maturity
period of three months. The deposits earned interest at fixed
rates ranging from 1.96% to 2.70% per annum and were
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank

(note 27(c)).

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances include the following:

21.

22.

23.

A5 6 B R B AR

JRE Wi I 422 RO HE i K JE

EL K SR AT A7 3K
RZTE-_=F+-A=+—H &x&
By mERRTER - R
+ A=+ —HWEEBEITER
ARBEFTERRINBHRA=M@A -
ZEFITIEN T1.96% E2.70% H) [E
TEFFEBEF L - I B 1EHE AR
F—RHERTEE 2B TRITHE (M
27(c)) °

Bl S RAT 55 8%
B RPITEB BN TEE -

2023 2022

—=E_-= —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BRI
Cash at bank and in hand RITNFERE 7,690 12,088
Short-term bank deposit HHIRITIER 4,000 3,000
Cash and bank balances IR NIRTTHER 11,690 15,088

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. As at 31 December 2023, cash and bank
balances of HK$52,000 (2022: HK$53,000) are in Renminbi.
The directors consider that the fair values of the short-
term deposits are not materially different from their carrying

amounts because of the short maturity period.

RITHESEEBARTHERFNERNZH
FIRFE - RHTHER R - T
RIREE 2 NBBEEFRME - &
EEHEHERAMERDAE - B
—TE-_ZH+_-_A=+—H8 " B
52,000 (=T = = F : ¥ 53,000
T 2B RIBITHEBUAAREEE -
AREHRTRNEHREEE  WES
RAEEATEHEHERAEYTESEAER -
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 * #ZE —E - =4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. EEBESTIE
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis (based NIEEAR  NEB L EENER
on invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows: ZHREBESTUREEREWT
2023 2022
—_E_= =T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BEETIT
0-30 days 0%230H 64 243
31-60 days 31£60H 16 58
61-90 days 61%£90H - 27
328
25. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS  25. MEfHIRFIA
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and no fixed FHEREAEERR RERERTEE
term of repayment. SKERRR o
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. BHIAME
2022
T
HK$ 000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Contract liabilities arising from: BHEEXRE :
Hospitality services IRIE R RAS 70
The movement in contract liabilities is as follows: BRAEBEMNEHIT
2023 2022
—E-= —_=F_—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 70 86
Revenue recognised during the year FRERHU R (86)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of B jfk /& & 2 &3 R 2 TR
billing in advance of hospitality services MEHE DB EZM 70
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 70
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A5 6 B R B AR

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 26. H#&fE (%)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract FELNBESE Y RN RIERT
liabilities are as follows: ™
Hospitality services R JE R R A5 AR A%
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services BHETHERNEERMER MK
are rendered and advances are normally required before EEENEHRGSAIEEIES « KIE
rendering services. Hospitality service contracts are for periods RRFERBEHABM—FHAT - I
of one year or less, or are billed based on the time incurred. RREARBKE -
27. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 27. SATEE (A
2023 2022
—=2== —E-
HK$°000 HK$’000
AT T BT
Current liabilities REEE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment A —E RN E|HIB R
within one year BITERZEH D 119,955 198,872
Portion of bank loans due for BERERERERZ
repayment after one year which contain R —FEEER
a repayment on demand clause RITER 2D 2,159 2,309
122,114 201,181
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loans due for repayment R—FBEBHERZ
after one year IRITER 7,289 7,710
129,403 208,891

The bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of
the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year

which contain a repayment on demand clause (and therefore
classified as current liability) is expected to be settled within
one year.

RITEERBHEAARIE - HERS
BREREEGER(MELSBLSRE A
B)ZBAR— $1§1a%&2f§
BN —FREE

BB
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED)
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled
repayment is as follows:

e

RAT

TR (AT (A1)

AEBZBITEERFEEERNE
2T

Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FRINEREEZ
within one year fﬁﬁg K2 EBD

Portion of bank loans due for repayment R —FE&F|HESE 2

after one year (note (a)) RITERZ 2 (KisE@)
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBRAFR
After 5 years hFE
Notes: B3
(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set (a)

out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on
demand clause.

(b) The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period,
all denominated in HK$, bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%
(2022: HIBOR plus 1.2% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%)
per annum. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
December 2023 ranged from 3.13% to 7.06% (2022: 2.63% to 5.78%)
per annum.

2023 2022
e = e —

—_—=<—— —_—<

HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

113,941 159,511

2,602 33,988
5,924 7,837
6,936 7,555

129,403 208,891

ZEDNMFETIREE R BEATE 25

BMEEAMAEATHEARERER
R R o

RWERR - AEEZRITEEGIUE
¥EHE) - PRIRBEARITRERS(E
BIRITRAIZEFL D) MFB1%E1.4%5K
R BB F R F F B2.95% E3.00% 5
B(ZZ=—=fF : FBRTRAEREMNE
BA12%E14% B R HEBFEFFE
2.95%%3.00%) - RZE_=F+=A
=+—8 AEEBZRITEEFEFEN
F31A3%E7.06%( —F — —4F : 2.63%
=5.78%) ©
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 27. SATEE (FHEM) (8)

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) BEE - (&)

©) The Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities are secured by @) AEBZRITBERRITEBE UK
certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment £ EREESD 547 8 213,595,000 7T
properties and bank deposits with carrying amounts of approximately (ZZ==F : #%214,596,0007C) *
HK$213,595,000 (2022: HK$214,596,000), HK$40,200,000 (2022: 7 ¥ 40,200,000 L (Z == F : B
HK$43,000,000) and nil (2022: HK$86,248,000) respectively, 43,000,0000) RE(ZFZ=F : B
also corporate guarantee given by the Company to the extent of 86,248,0007T) 2 & T¥W%¥ - WE K&
HK$129,403,000 (2022: HK$208,891,000). & BREMERRITER  URAAF

e 2 EIR A7 %129,403,0007T( =%
— 4 : j5%208,891,0007T) 2 A FIHE

RIEIES -
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEAEFIIA
Details of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and NREBRAEELBEEEBRRZE
their movements during the current and prior years are as ERMBEEE/ (AE)RESFH 7 HB
follows: m
Impairment Fair value
Accelerated loss on changes of
tax right-of-use investment
depreciation assets  Taxlosses  properties Total
EREEE RENE
MERERE HERSE WERE ZATEZD &3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AR AETT EBTT AT

At 1 January 2022 i St = (4,028) 558 = (2,684) (6,154)
Charged to profit or loss (note 9) ~ RB&EH Nk 2 A (fi1:£9) - (90) = - (90)
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZZF+ZR=1-HRK

1 January 2023 —8-=£-f-H (4,028) (2,684) (6,244)
(Charged)/credit to profit RERETGIR)/GAZFE

or loss (note 9) GED) (653) 4,229

At 31 December 2023 RZBZZF+=A=+-H (4,681) (2,684) (2,015)
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28. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 28. RIEFLIA (A])
2023 2022
—F-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Represented by: 4K -
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEEE 722 449
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBREE (2,737) (6,693)
(2,015) (6,244)
At 31 December 2023, the Group had tax losses of RZEBE_=F+=-_A=+—8 ' &x%
approximately HK$403,172,000 (2022: HK$376,450,000) #4775 ¥ 403,172,000 L ( Z & = =
available for offset against future profit. Deferred tax assets F : HB#376,450,0007T ) 2 B TEE 1B
of HK$4,614,000 (2022: nil) have been recognised in respect AT AR SE R 2 m ) o I M ph A IR S
of tax losses of HK$27,966,000 (2022: nill). No deferred tax 188 # 27,066,000 (=T ==
assets have been recognised in respect of the remaining tax ) ERIELERIE & E 5% 4,614,000
losses of HK$375,206,000 (2022: HK$376,450,000) due to T(ZE=—=F: F) - HREAFEF
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Under current tax TR PHEEMN - WEMHKR TEES
legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. #375,206,0007C (T = —F : K
376,450,0007T ) FERIEER IH B EE ©
BHE B ATz MIEEG] - L IEE S A &
PR ER#ESE o
SHARE CAPITAL 29. AR

29.

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
BREERE.2TZEER
Number of Nominal value
shares HK$°000
ROEE HEBETET

Authorised: ERE

At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 RZEBE-__F—H—H =ZF
—ZF+ZRA=+—HRK

and 31 December 2023

it s el sl =l 2,000,000,000 400,000

Issue and fully paid: ERTREE

At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 RZEBE-_—_F—HF—H =%
ZTZF+ZA=+—HK

and 31 December 2023

—E-=F+=ZA=+—8H 326,077,423
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A share option scheme (the “Existing Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 and 30
May 2019 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the participants who have contributed to the Group
and encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Upon the expiry of
the Existing Share Option Scheme on 21 May 2019, no further
option can be offered thereunder but any options granted prior
to such expiry but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable. A new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company pursuant to
a resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2019. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors may, at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of
any member of the Group, any advisors and service providers
of any member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
the options by each of the relevant grantees.

The options vest on the condition that the grantee is a
participant of the New Share Option Scheme from the date of
options grant to the commencement date of the exercisable
period of the options and the participant is not required to
achieve any performance targets before any share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme can be
exercised.

&5 G MBS R B R

ARABRBER -_ZTEANFAA -+
BR-_ZE-NAFRA=TRHETZK
RAFAE LBBZIRBERFMBER
ErE([REBRETS]) - %A
Bt E c T2 B MR AEI R
BAKBEFELERMZ2EE - URR
B2EERRNABREBR ZEEN
SHNRSARAARERD ZEE -
REBREFENR _Z-NFEHA
“t—RIH FEHBRUREZRD
E BB AR - R B EI AT IR
WARTTEZBREFEEE RN T
T - ARBREBER_F-NAFREA
S THETZBRREFAELEBZ
REBERRAF B AR 8 (T3 Acae
AED) - RIEBHBRESS  EF
SARNBRANEEEAKERRZE
= BB UERAKEEAKERF
Z A0 R ] % BR 75 5 A o B R
URBEARA RN - RBEKTER
To=Fdhz&m%E  )\ARAEMHR
REBREE BTz Wmi(E : (i)
BORERRHBREE B AT AER
7 BEMR AT FHRME - Rk
MEE - ZFHEBARAAREZEAR D
ZIERER - XEB1ITZRBAR

=

BhRzBBIRERARARERRE
BEANEBRETESRGZES
I ER - ARBRFERETEZ
2HEA - M2 EABARREHEBR
REST 819X th 2 1 fa 5 R 4 °] JE 1T (£ A
EREMARERR -
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 30. DA AT 2 iAE (48)
(CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the year and their RENBRE S8 REMETFHT
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FEEMAT :
Weighted
average
Number of exercise
options price
n#EEH
BRENE TEE
HK$
i ded
Outstanding at 1 January 2022, RZE-_—_F—H—H"
31 December 2022 and T+ A=+t—HkFK
31 December 2023 —E-=%+=-HA=+—H
réﬂ’ﬂiﬁ@'? 12,548,000
Exercisable at 1 January 2022, RZE-_—_F—H—H"
31 December 2022 and —E-—F+-A=+—A8K
31 December 2023 —E-=%+-—HA=+—H
A{TfE 12,548,000
No share options were exercised during the years ended 31 MEERERBE T _ZFR_ZF
December 2023 and 2022. The exercise prices and exercise T ZF+Z A=+ —HIEFERNET
periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the &g - EQ/?&_&%E@EEZ?H‘}@E%H%EZG
reporting period are as follows: R RATEANT :
Number of Exercise
2023 and 2022 options price Exercise period
—E-—=ER=-ZT-— AR ERE TEE  TES
HK$
ks
Granted on 14 Sept 2016 3,096,000 0.732 14 September 2016 — 13 September
2026
MRZZE—RENAATHARH —~NFENAATEA
E-T-RFhA+T=AH
Granted on 19 Sept 2017 3,096,000 0.698 19 September 2017 — 18 September
2027
RZZE—tFNATHIERH —+tFnATNAE
1_7_t¢HH+AE
Granted on 3 Oct 2018 3,096,000 0.395 3 October 2018 — 2 October 2028
RZZE—N\F+A=ZAKH —N\E+H=H
1_7_A¢+ﬂ B
Granted on 16 Oct 2019 3,260,000 0.250 16 October 2019 — 15 October 2029

R-ZE—hF+A+TRBERY

Z—NETATAE
E-_T_hF+A+THEE

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.3 years (2022:

5.3 years).

RITEBRER-_ZE_=F+_A
Eq= Eleu%“%’Jﬁ%TAiﬁﬁx&,ﬂﬁ
BASF(ZEZZF : 5.3F) °
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  31. #ER/ 6 BABS IR I %
OF HOLDING COMPANY
2023
—E-=
Notes HK$’000
M EE BET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRAIZEKE
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments £t [ U BR 3% K T8 1~ 5718 485
Amounts due from subsidiaries A I NGIE L] 323,168
Pledged bank deposits BEHEAIRITIFH =
Cash and bank balances Ra MIRTT4 8 4,217
327,870
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals Eo e BR R R JE R T 5RIE 660
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 121,281
Amount due to a shareholder JE — R R FHIE 15,000
136,941
Net current assets REBEEFE 190,929
Net assets EEFE 240,729
EQUITY R
Share capital A A 29 65,215
Reserves s 33 175,514
Total equity R 240,729

On behalf of the directors

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel

B iE KA
Director Director
EE EEo

REREF

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania

2022

— = — —

—_—

HK$'000
BT T

49,800

573
312,815
28,096
4,781

346,265

1,039
120,499
15,000

136,538

209,727

259,627

65,215
194,312

259,527
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(a) Asat 31 December 2023, the Company had direct and (@ RZZFE—_=F+=-_A=+4+-—
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: B ARQEFETIHEBRR
ZEENEEER
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity  place of operations issued capital Company
LN
T AR Lt B R sy 33
NAER EAER FTEEBRBENE BERTRAFE ZBAL
Held directly:
EERE:
Century Legend Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 63,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Century Legend Investments ERRAES ARAR  REBRERELR SRAEBOIETLY
Limited 63,0008 & &%
Century Legend Management  Hong Kong, Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company management services in - of HK$1,000,000
Hong Kong
HERXEEARAR &% ARAF REBREMEFERRSE %%1,000,00072
1,000,0008% & & ik
Century Legend Entertainment  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
iR EREBRAT RERAES  ARRE  REBRERELR 1ELZIRERER
CL Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in 1 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%

limited liability company Hong Kong
EREXREBRATF B BRATF REAREREEZR BT RS BR
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(a)

HE—T—=—F+=-FA=+—HIFE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct (@ R=ZZF—_=F+=-_A=+-—

and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

(Continued)

Name of company

ACEL

Held indirectly:
BERA

Century Legend Finance Limited

EERERERRAT

Century Legend Strategic
Investments Limited

EERERBRE
BRAF

EA Interior Contracting Limited

EA Interior Contracting Limited

CL Entertainment Limited

ERREAR A

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity

MR L% R

EAEH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRAF

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRATF
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAA

A ARBFRAE THIHEARR
ZEENEZER  (B)

Percentage
of interest
Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
place of operations issued capital Company
YN
Fiisags
FTEEBRBEHE BERITRAFE ZADL
Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
and personal loans in of HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong
REBRUBER #1%10,000,0007.2
MAER 10,000,0008% & %
Investment holding and 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
trading securities in of HK$10,000,000;
Hong Kong 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$5,000,000
REBREBER #1#10,000,0007.2
MAER 10,000,0008% & 1% :
78 #5,000,0007T.2
5,000,000 B R
BB
Provision of interior 100 ordinary shares of 100%
and property project HK$100
management service
REEARWFEEERE A¥1007T2 1008 LR
%
Investment holding and 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
property investment in -~ HK$10,000
Macau

RRFKEERERRE  %%10,0007T.210,0008%
nERE LRR
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(a) As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct @ MZE-_=F+=-A=4+—
and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: B KRREFAETHHERA
(Continued) ZEEREEER - (8)

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity  place of operations issued capital Company
LN
FE AR L 30 B iigser: 33
NCEE EAER FTEERRQENE ERITRAFE ZADL
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEsE : ()
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares of 58%
limited liability company under the brand name HK$3,827,496
of "Headquarters" in
Hong Kong
R YN BB ARLA REB AR 753,827,496 T2
[Headquarters | 150,000/ & 1 %
Century Legend Properties Hong Kong, Investment holding, 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments
and trading securities
in Hong Kong
iR ERRAT &8 BRAF REBRERERR - AT REBR
NEREREEES
Simple Way Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 100 ordinary share of 58%
limited liability company HK$100
SHARRR & BRAT LEEX BT AREBR
H1 Company Limited Hong Kong, License Holding 10,000 ordinary share of 100%
limited liability company HK$10,000
H1 Company Limited BB ARLA R 75%10,0007C
210,000 & # i
Hong Kong Macau Travel Limited Hong Kong, Provision of travel agency 500,000 ordinary shares of 100%

BRIRERRAA

limited liability company

&t ARDA

services in Hong Kong

RER R IR IRS

HK$500,000
7&#500,0007T,2
500,000/ & &%
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(a) As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct @ MZE-_=F+=-A=4+—
and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: B ARAFETHHEARR
(Continued) ZEEREEER - (8)

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity  place of operations issued capital Company
KRR
T AR L b B Fiisags
NEER EAER FTEEBRBEHE BERITRAFE ZADL
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEE ()
Homy Group Plus Limited Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 10,000 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company Service HK$10,000
Homy Group Plus Limited &t ARLA RALIE RAE R 7##10,0007T.2
10,0008 & AR
HRL Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$100
HRL Limited BE ARLA RARERR B ¥51007T.2 1008 E AR
Silver Billion Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
limited liability company
RECEFRAT Bt BRAA Emax BEIT AREER
Full Wave Development Limited ~ Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
limited liability company Service
ERERBRELA BF - BRATA REIRE R AR BT AREAR
HGNP One Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
limited liability company each
HGNP One Limited BE ARLA RRIRE R BREEEKITZ
1008k & R
HGNP Plus Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
limited liability company each
HGNP Plus Limited &g ARDA RRRERR SREEEYITZ

100k E @Ak
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As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct (a)
and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

(Continued)

Name of company

RAER

Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEHE ()

HGNP Three Limited

HGNP Three Limited

HGNP Four Limited

HGNP Four Limited

HGNP Six Limited

HGNP Six Limited

Macau Mesquita Homy Inn
Limited

BFEEIRREERE
BRAF

Century Legend Properties
(Macau) Limited

tHgE M E (RPT)
BRAR

CL San Kin Yip Property
Investment Limited

ERHERNERE
BRAF

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

SR HR
EAEH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&t ARLA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
BB ARLA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRAF

Macau,
limited liability company
B BRAA

Macau,
limited liability company

B BRAH

Macau,
limited liability company
BF BRAA

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEEBREEHE

Holding of hostel license

BAIRSER

Holding of hostel license

BEERERR

Holding of hostel license

BERSER

Inactive

Investment holding in
Macau

RRMESRERR

Property investments in
Macau

REMRENERE

HE T —=—F+=-HA=+—HIFE

RZE_=ZF+=_A=+—
B ARAFHETHHEBARR

ZEENBEER - (B)
Percentage
of interest
Particulars of held by the
issued capital Company
YN
iigser: 33
ERITRAFE ZADL

100 ordinary share of HK$1 70%

each
BREEES T,
100 BB’
100 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
each
BREEAEITL
100/ L@k
100 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
each
BREEES T
100/ & B

Macau Pataca (‘MOP”)
25,000
RPTE([RPIME ])25,0007

42%

MOP25,000 100%

RPIE25,0007T

MOP25,000 100%

JRF825,0007
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(a) Asat 31 December 2023, the Company had direct (@) MH-EBE-_=F+-_A=+—8"
and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: RARHFETNINMB AR CE
(Continued) L REEER - (8)

Percentage

of interest

Place of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of held by the

Name of company and kind of legal entity  place of operations issued capital Company
YN

T AR L b B Fiisags

NEER EAER FTEEBRBEHE BERITRAFE ZADL

Held indirectly: (Continued)
BiERE ()

CL MLO12 Property Investment  Macau, Property investmentsin -~ MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company Macau
trEMLO12M ¥R & AR BRAA RRFIRENFRE AFI¥25,0007C
BRAR
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery Macau, Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company
2B HERIRE B BRAR Tmek BPI#25,0007
BRAR
The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to * EBREREEROER FEEERR
dividends or to participate in any distribution in winding up. B NMESLEFEMNTMDEMEF -
They carry no rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at BEEERREMAREASAS - b
any general meeting. FEAEARREAGRRBREAE LIRE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities MENRBARRERS BITEMAEL

at the end of the year (2022: nil). BHR(ZEZ—F :|)o
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. M@ FIFEG (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary (b) HE—BEHBATF
On 31 August 2023, the Group disposed of 100% R-_E-_=FNA=+—H"
equity interest in Max Rise Investments Limited AEBHEREBHEF — K
(“Max Rise”), one of the Group’s subsidiaries. The BARBEREBER AR (B
consideration of the disposal is HK$8,300,000. Before 7 1)EI100% AZHE - HE BIEH
disposal, Max Rise was holding an investment property KBS 5 AB18,300,0007T °
for earning rental income. RIEER - BAFEE —HEE

MENERESWA -

The loss of HK$900,000 arising from the disposal of o B 7R = AR RS 1B 900,000
Max Rise was included in the consolidated statement of TEFFALZAEEZAEAWATRE -
comprehensive income and was calculated as follows: sEmMT
2023
—E-=
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration HWEREB 8,300
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFRE -

— Investment properties — B 9,200
Loss on disposal HEEHEE 900
The consideration of HK$8,300,000 from the disposal HEFZEMRERESBEBK
was settled in cash during the year, and was used for 8,300,000 CERERNLS + B
financing the Group’s operations. ZERBREAEAERZEIR

HES -
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Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises to the fair value gain on
transferred from self-occupied property to investment
property in 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve represents the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

Share option reserve
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.16.

gz AN

& W5 R B RE

W

REE
AEERAEERBEFEZHESR
BREH NGRS EBRTIR -

HEz2MEENT -
(a) EXRfFE
REBZ EARGFEEE

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i) ARREHTHRAEE
HAKAEBZZER
ARE-NAN=FKH
B2 AT E R
wERCER K

(ii) HHEARRABRE
TBRARRL =TT
—FEBTROZER
T EB 0.1 7T HRE
#0.097T °

BB
EHRFEBEERR T —_FMH
BEEVEEREREVENHD
FEWE

BAFEFARMBEERRA
ZHBEERE

BAFEFARMEREAZ
MBEERBRENESBRE
BRE BB RE LR FRIA
THRERAFEFAEBLEZE
WA ZBHEREZ A FERG

NP

/L °©

BRERE
B8 B 4 5 88 £ AR 48 B 33,16 7
B2 WA -
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 33. feifhi (%)
Company b NNE|
Share
Share  Contributed option Accumulated

premium surplus reserve losses Total
R4 & ME ERRS BRERE RiER H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—F—Hf—H 168,227 213,978 3,110 (167,837) 207,478
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (13,166) (13,166)

At 31 December 2022and R=-ZE=-=f+=-F=1+-H
=

1 January 2023 k=—B-=fF-f- 158,227
Loss for the year AFEER =
At 31 December 2023 N-ZE-=£+-A=+-R 158,227

Contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i)

the difference between the underlying net tangible
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
at the time of the group reorganisation referred to
above; and

the reduction in issued share capital arising from the
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001.

213,978

213,978

(181,003) 194,312
(18,798) (18,798)

3,110 (199,801) 175,514

ARARZ BB

(i)

(if)

ANRAB TR B A B 2 45 8
EREEFHRAQNGN it
SEEMABZEEITRMEE
ZER &

AR R AEHE BITRA
WL BT -FEETR
2 B EES 0.1 7T HI R
B#0.097T °
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34. LEASES 34. #HE
(@) The Group as lessee (a) ATEEEAREABEA
Nature of leasing activities HEXKHE
The Group leases a number of properties in the Hong REBRBBHEZEME -
Kong, including office premises, hostel premises and BREHEENRAZTYE K
hair salon from which it operates. All the periodic rent is SEMENEANR - HEIAMA
fixed over the lease term. EHHESHAEE -
Lease liabilities HEAE
Other
properties
leased for
own use
HENHERZ
Hih %
HK$’000
P T IT
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-__F—H—H 9,815
Addition NE 2,051
Effect of lease modification HEBR & 6,997
Interest expense (note 7) FEREZ (M:E7) 377
Lease payments MEFIA (8,222)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-EBE-_—_F+=-HA=+—-HER

—E-=f—H—H 11,018
Addition NE 6,183
Effect of lease modification HEBRFE 6,083
Interest expense (note 7) A EREZ (M:E7) 918

Lease payments HEFHE (12,835)

At 31 December 2023 R-E-_=%+=-HA=+—H 11,367
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34. LEASES (CONTINUED) 34. THE ()
(a) The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) AEBEEREABAGE)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HES®EE)
Future lease payments are due as follows: RERBEMNZRIBBEROT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEBERE FIE BRE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT T BT T

As at 31 December 2023 RHR=-ZT-=%F

t=A=t—8
Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year, S -FZEZFAHFR
inclusive (BRMFEBEEN)

As at 31 December 2022 R=-ZE=-—fF

+=—A=+—H
Within one year —F R 5,921 (363) 5,558
In the second to fifth year, &E_-_EZERERN
inclusive (EEMERETEAN) 5,640 (180) 5,460
11,561 (543) 11,018
The total cash outflows for leases (including repayment BHEZE-=F+=-A=1+—
of lease liabilities) in the year ended 31 December 2023 HEFENHEERS AL LR
was HK$13,291,000 (2022: HK$8,678,000). (BIEEEHEAR) REK
13,291,00070 (= —4F - &

#8,678,0007T) °
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34. LEASES (CONTINUED) 34. HE(E)
(b) The Group as lessor (b) AXEEEARAEHBA
The Group leases its investment properties (note REBEREBESEHERHELE
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases HEEME(MF15)  BEZ
negotiated for terms ranging from two to three years AN EFRE=F(=2 ==
(2022: one to four years). At the end of the reporting F . —ENF) REEHE -
period, the Group had total future minimum lease RIFEME P ETY 2 T a] BUH &
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with BHE  KEBRUATFEE
its tenants falling due as follows: BiE) FE R R S R T E SRR 48
BT -
2023 2022
—E—-= —ZE-

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

Within one year BB —F 2,278 2,990

After one year but within two years BB —FE BB E 664 1,798

After two years but within three years #BiE ™M E 18 1838 = = 155

4,943
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. #HEHE

Vi o) i

RERPELNBEHENT

Amounts
due to Bank Lease
shareholders borrowings liabilities
EERREHE BITRE HEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AETT AETT BT
(Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 34)
(fi7£25) (Hiz27) (Hz#34)
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—_%—F—H 15,000 201,783 9,815
Changes from cash flows: Benegs:
Proceeds from bank borrowings ﬁEﬁ%EFﬁ%?ﬂ - 10,000 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRIIEE = (2,892) -
Loan interest paid ﬁ‘éﬁﬂ - (5,193) -
Principal element of lease payment ENRZEAE D = = (7,845)
Interest element of lease payment HEFAFZFIBHS = = (377)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREMELYRE - 1,915 (8,222)
Other changes: Him#Es)
Increase in lease liabilities from HIVE iti:-4
entering into new leases MEAE i‘ﬂﬂ = = 2,051
Effect of lease modification HEERTE - - 6,997
Interest expense (note 7) FE B (M5E7) = 5,193 377

At 31 December 2022 and RZEZ__F+_A=+—-H
1 January 2023 k=Z-=%—R—AH 208,891
Changes from cash flows: Renegs:
Advance from a shareholder RE—BBRENLR =
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (79,488)
Loan interest paid EREHRHE (9,896)
Principal element of lease payment HERRZAEHH - (11,917)
Interest element of lease payment HERFZFIBHH - (918)

Total changes from financing cash flows HERERELDAE (89,384) (12,835)
Other changes: Hin#g) :
Increase in lease liabilities from FHHEEL
entering into new leases HEGEEM
Effect of lease modification HEERTE

Interest expense (note 7)

B RS (a7

At 31 December 2023

RZE_=#+-A=1+—H

9,896

129,403
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties during the
year:

(@) Compensation of key management personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel are the directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose
remunerations are set out in note 13(b).

(b) Operating lease arrangements

RN '
RESHBRRAMBEREZRS
RiE#o  FRREERRMEAL
ETTHEARS

(a) FEEBAEZHMH
EFZRAE TEEEABARK
RRAZEBRET R TFMNE
B FEZHSHBIRER
MI5E13(a) R M sE13(b) ©

(b) KEHEZRH

2023 2022

—E-= —_F-—

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETIT

Rental expenses for a motor vehicle [JA N A B /58E 2

paid to HeEfMx
— Smiley & Bee Limited —Smiley & Bee Limited
- Complex Investments Limited —BHEBIREAR AR
- Conba Management Consultant —2EEIBEER AR A 7
Limited
Rental income received from M LA 2 R 2 2 WA

- Po Lee Securities Limited —ENBELFBRAA

240
216

779
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

36. BAEHAN+3Z5 (48)

(c) Others (c) EHftb
2023 2022
—E-= S
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Company secretary service income [ALA T2 FIUE Z
received from NEIMERB KA
- Po Lee Asset Management —BNEEEEBRAA
Limited 5
- Po Lee Investment Consultant —SBREEBERA A
Limited S
- Po Lee Securities Limited —BHESBRAR 5
— Raise Success Limited —Raise Success Limited 52
Corporate administration and MA T A RIUER 2 1 F AT
management service income & NER RS WASA R 2
property management income BB A
received from
— Ever Crown Holdings Limited —HEEEBR A A =
- Happy Max (Hong Kong) Limited — &= (&F#)ER A =
— Ztylez Group International —mikEEEERE AR AR
Limited -
Broker fee paid to MU TR 2L E
- Po Lee Securities Limited —BHESBRARA 3
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(c) Others (Continued) (c) EH(&E)

These arrangements are mutually agreed by the Group
and the contracting parties.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Smiley & Bee Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia, director, are the beneficial shareholder and
directors of Complex Investments Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Conba Management
Consultant Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Chu Ming Tak
Tania, director, are the directors of Po Lee Securities
Limited until Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Chu
Ming Tak Tania resigned in December 2022.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the benéficial
trustee and director of Raise Success Limited.

Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania, director, is the director
of Po Lee Asset Management Limited and Po Lee
Investment Consultant Limited until Ms. Chu Ming Tak
Evans Tania resigned in December 2022.

RELTHEAKERANTE
FRBKRERE -

EE TR LE ASmiley & Bee
LimitedZ B R KR ESE ©

EEEMALTERERBAL LT
RERBREERAFZER
BRREES -

EECMRATEREBEEER
RERABRZEGRRRES -

BEE-E-__FF+-AHEAR
I EEPBRIEERKPE
REAENEBELBERARZE
$o

EE 2 M A L A& A Rase
Success LimitedZ E#F X EA

RES -

BEE-T-_F+-_Af%EA
It EERPELLAENE
EEEARARNMEFRERE
BMERARZES -
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The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting
period are categorised as follows. See note 3.12
for explanations on how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

AEBEAEZBMERER  TEAM
SRR (BRmRINER R - R E R KA
ZERER)  FEERBRERBDESRE
e AEBMNABEAREESETRE
BTSN R FRAME - X NSO
AEBEMBRANBETNZE - T
XEIEZESRTAEB AR R
7N & BUR R 7% % B TR B B e
AEERKYEGERREEER
BERNRIES - AT E2E8EHS
| EBEBREEABRTAE AR
B B R A 0 AT 3 Il E B K BR R
BT R\ B 2 SR

371 sREEREEZET
R EBRE BRREB K
EERBEBEZERES BN
e BB T A ZERM{A
FEHEARTE BT - R
5¥3.12 ¢
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

37.1 Categories of financial instruments

(Continued)
(i) Financial assets

Br i

37. B
(%

10

¥

il

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost
— Other receivables and
deposits
— Amount due from
non-controlling interest

(i) HBEE
2023
—E-=F
HK$’000
BET T
BAFEFFAHEMEEmRA
2B EE
BRAFEGABRZ
W EE
REERATTEZ
WEEE
—HMERERR RS

— R SEE IR SR IR

(ii)

- Pledged bank deposits —BEIRITER
— Cash and bank balances —IR & MIRTTH R
Financial liabilities (i) HBEE
2023
—®==
HK$’000
AT T
Financial liabilities measured at 1Z#E 55 st 2 2
amortised cost HEaE
- Trade and other payables — R H 4 EMERR 6,009
— Amounts due to shareholders — FE{ IR 3018 15,378
— Bank borrowings (secured) —IRITIEE (HIKMT) 129,403

150,790

JR Bt B K A

Il

i

pa(|(%
P_

371 ERMEERSEZER (H)

2022

—_—=——

HK$’000

BT

5,007

58,940

7,088

10
86,248
15,088

172,381

2022

—EF -
HK$’000

PEHETIT

7,887
15,000
208,891

231,778
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.1 Categories of financial instruments
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other financial liabilities

37. B
(’/

]
y
H )

5 JE B 8 B S B R

371 SREEREBEZE(E)

(iii)

—MHERE

— Lease liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at
fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include other receivables and deposits, balances
with non-controlling interest, pledged bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and
other payables, amounts due to shareholders,
lease liabilities and bank borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments except for
non-current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

For disclosure purpose, the fair values of non-
current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are not materially different from their carrying
values. The fair value has been determined using
discounted cash flow model and is classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Significant
inputs include expected future cash flows and
discount rate used credit risk of the Group.

(iv)

BETT

Httema s

2023
—E—=
HK$’000

2022
e

_HK_$EOO
BT

11,367 11,018

WIHRAFETEZ
TRITA
YIEAFEFEZS
@Iﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ%%
KRS - EIFERE
mzm% EHEMRTT
TR BREeRBITE
B BEREMEMNER
R BABIRE - A
SRENMRITEE -

ERNEEHE  ZEFD
BTACGERBHHEERAE
FARTTREERIN 2 BRE
BEEEQNHERS
RKEMS - ERBHE
ERBERRITEEZR
FEAERAELES
RER - RFETER
BRHRRERERLE
EUESBRARAFE
EMEIE - EAHER
BRAEEEERRNTE
H\Hﬂixfﬁz%/ﬂb%&/ﬁ\gﬁ
& o
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37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(v)

Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices which is classified as level 1
financial instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

&5 G MBS R B R

37.1

MREEREEZER(E)

(v)

BEAFEFEZzSHE

TR

B 542 2 R SR R A 1
WREBRBHIER 5
MZAFEFAEME
EUAZ B EERIE
AP EFABEZHH
BEZRATE 2%
MEHREETE wHE
REIESHTIA-

FR - BEF2ENES
ELmITH -

TREHZAFETER
ZEMIAZ M (RE
RNTEERED)

-  B1E:MHREE
REBERERT
152 wECRER

)

- F2E HEEH
BEMERZ(BE
%) sk (BIRE
BRHEIT) AER
ZBHA(TBES
1EMBEZR
B &

—  B3E : AFRE
ABRZMEH
BeEREESL
BEzBAEZX
BIRZBA) -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)
37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
(v)  Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1
Z18
HK$'000
BETT

As 31 December 2023 R-B-=fF

+=A=1+-AH
Financial assets at FVTPL 2 A TES AR

MHKEE
Financial assets at FVOCI AT EFAEMEE

WAZREEE
Net fair values FATE

As 31 December 2022 R-E-—F

i
(=]

T LB B A

—_
T

N=|

N5

371 MBREERAEZER(E)
(v) BLAVEFEZEH

Iﬂ(ﬁ)
RERE BB &R AR
NYEFECHMBEE
T8 BUTZAYE
L
Level 2 Level 3 Total
H28 23 H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETIT ABTTT ARTT

+=A=1+-A
Financial assets at FVTPL AT @EH ABZY

MBEE 58,940 - - 58,940
Financial assets at FVOCl A TESARMBEE

WAZBBEE 5,007 - - 5,007
Net fair values FATE 63,947 - - 63,947

There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and
financial assets at FVOCI income are listed equity
securities denominated in HK$. Fair values have
been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the end of the reporting period.

RBERE - F1IEEF2EZ
B EER o

3308 A TEE B LR
B 505 52 4 71 R 45 HA AR L 3
mED -

AEBZRAFEFABGLZ
MBEERERAFEFTAEM
%my/\zaﬁ%ff%ummx
AEHEZEMBRAES -
FEI2ERMBE #E’\#&iﬁﬁ
K2 EAEBMERE °
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37.2 Foreign currency risk 37.2 HhEEE R

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As at
31 December 2022, the Group’s exposures to currency
risk arose from its deposits placed in banks, which
are primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out
in notes 22 and 23. Foreign currency denominated
financial assets translated into HK$ at the closing rates
as at 31 December 2022 was HK$86,301,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group have no significant
foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency
transactions as the Group mainly operated in Hong
Kong with majority of the business transactions being
denominated and settled in HK$.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group’s result and equity in regard to a 2.5%
appreciation in the foreign currencies against the
Group entities’ functional currencies for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The 2.5% is the rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
best assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency exchange rates
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

31

B 1 L S8 %, i F

(#8)

37.2 SRR ()
HRED ()

Decrease Decrease
in loss for in loss for
the year and the year and
accumulated accumulated
losses losses
FREER FAREER
ZtBERRY EESL S
2023 2022

——— L

—_———— —=

HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT

2.5% appreciation in RMB ARBFHE2.5%

2,158

A 2.5% depreciation in the foreign currencies against
the Group entities’ functional currencies would have the
same magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and
equity but of opposite effect.

SNEBAEEERINETEER
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.3

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s result
and equity (through the impact on floating rate bank
borrowings).

E 2 ([EZ )8
+100E 25

Increase in basis points (“bp”)
+ 100 bp

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.
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37.4 Equity price risk

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI (note 17) and financial assets
at FVTPL (note 19).

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commaodity price risk.

At 31 December 2023, if the quoted market price for
the financial assets at FVOCI had been 10% (2022:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$81,000 (2022: HK$501,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2022: 10%) higher with all other variables
remain unchanged, the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses would decrease by HK$5,110,000
(2022: HK$5,894,000). A 10% (2022: 10%) lower in the
quoted market price for listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at FVTPL, with all other variables
held constant, would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.
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37.5 Credit risk 37.5 EERARK

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loans receivable is
performed by the directors on on-going basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its other receivables, deposits, loan
receivables, amount due from non-controlling interest
and bank balances. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in respect of the financial instruments are their
carrying values.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.
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Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables, deposits, loan
receivables, and amount due from non-controlling
interest, the Group considers the background and
regularly monitors the financial condition of the
counterparties to assess the recoverability of the
outstanding balances. The management does not
expect any loss allowance from non-performance by the
counterparties and assessed that the ECLs in respect
of these balances were immaterial at the end of the
reporting period.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
majority of the bank balances are deposited in reputable
banks, for which the Group consider to have low credit
risk. There was no history of default in relation to these
financial institutions.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities.

37.5

37.6
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. PR A ER =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
37.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 37.6 REBELEM(E)
At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile REEHIR REBERAEY
of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual RUARBEERECHBAES
undiscounted cash flows is as follows: B AR HI AT -
Total
contractual Total
On Within In2to5  More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1 year years 5years  cash flows amount
FHAER

REX - ZERE RBIE NEREAR RaAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT AT

At 31 December 2023 WoB-=#+-F=1+-A

Trade and other payables BERAMERER 6,009 6,009
Amounts due to shareholders ENREE 15,378 15,378
Lease liabilties fHEafk 11,723 11,367

Bank borrowings including those {715 E (BEHAREX
contain a repayment on demand ~ ERETZHTEE)

clause (note) (Pust) 121,687 131,204 129,403
137,065 164,404 162,157
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables EX RIS = 7,887 = = 7,887 7,887
Amount due to a shareholder et —2kEE 15,000 - - - 15,000 15,000
Lease libilties HEaR - 5921 5,640 - 11,561 11,018
Bank borrowings including those 1728 (BEHAREY
contain arepayment on demend ~ EREF 2 HITEE)
clause (note) (&) 200,760 651 2,604 6,834 210,849 208,891
215,760 14,459 8,244 6,834 245,297 242,79
Note:  For bank loans which contain a repayment on demand clause MizE : HRBARITIZEBETE
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the ZHRERBEEBKRZETE
analysis above shows the cash outflow based on the earliest B LSRR EE R §EA
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is if Bz &FEE(BMHE F#1T
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the EEMGGERNERARER

loans with immediate effect. BROZYHRESRLE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BARSE By B A R =

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#48)

(CONTINUED)

37.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 37.6 REBELEM(E)
The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis TR AEIRERKESEER
of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause ZIRITEFREBEE R B EET
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in JETEZAEBHZEEHAS
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest e ZEeRERREAONEK
payments computed using contractual rates. As a HEZFBERNZR - Bt - %ZE
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts SRR MBI B S [1RE
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity SKEZ|EEHSEANRE S5
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s BE o Kt RASEE 2B
financial position, the directors do not consider that it o BERABITTIARAIEEST
is probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to FERISERERERER - &
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe EREZSERTERBKER
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with WEE A TERBHERS -
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Maturity analysis - bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HERERRERI L RTETET D2 HBE AN

Total
contractual Total
Within In2to5 More than undiscounted carrying
1 year years 5years cash outflows amount
RHRER
—ER —ZEE BBLE HReRE4E REAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BT AR BB AETT

31 December 2023 “E-ZE+ZfA=1-H 115,716 124,898 121,687

31 December 2022 —ZE--F+-fB=1-H 163,212 41,369 1,896 206,477 200,760
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$252,474,000
(2022: HK$280,928,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.
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SRR

BEY) K e

Investment Properties BEYHE
Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
) (31 HE EEEE REE B
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No.44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RPIBE RN AB BRI EERER UKL [HES hETEE 349 AR 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
BPIRFEA BB 55519-5975% - [HES RHIHE 8,110 R 100%
L§5%38-78-B5
R E 4 1% % 565-605-CHf
SR E i EHP12-07 ~ P12-08 « P12-09 X%
P12-10B
26 Andar T1/B, One Central Residences, Residential Medium term 1,359 sq.ft. 100%
EM Macau Avenida De Sagres N58, Macau leasehold
SEPIDAH KBS B 585K = 5% B 152612 T1/BREE F= HETRE 1,359 5 R 100%
G/F of nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 615 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan, leasehold
and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
EIROKEEA105-1075R M N B MR E 135 A% REEE 615F AR 100%

F136 R
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HE 1) 3 B

Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
15 HE HE EEEE rEBEM
Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold
Horizon Gardens,
No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
ERQEBAE AL EBI7H = REEE 902F 7R 100%
BRIEBERKAE10EBE
Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
BB OB E A S IE215% F= RAMEE 675F AR 100%

S AFEILE23EFE
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